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Company Profile

JS Global Capital Limited (‘JS Global’ or ‘the Company’) is one of the largest Brokerage and
Investment Banking firm in Pakistan with a continued leadership position in the domestic capital
markets. JS Global is listed at Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (‘PSX’) and JS Bank Limited (‘JSBL’
or ‘the Bank’) is the major sponsor shareholder.

JS Global was incorporated as a private limited company on June 28, 2000. However, the Company started
its operations in May 2003 and the name of the Company was changed from JSCL Direct (Private) Limited
to Jahangir Siddiqui Capital Markets (Private) Limited. Subsequently, the Company was converted into a
public unquoted company and the holding company Jahangir Siddiqui and Company Limited (JSCL) offered
its 25% shareholding to the general public for subscription in December 2004 and the Company obtained
listing on Karachi Stock Exchange Limited and Islamabad Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited on February
7,2005.).

During 2006-07 the Company issued 10,009,700 shares to Global Investment House K.S.C.C Kuwait,
(‘'Global'). The shares were issued to Global without offering right shares on the basis of a special resolution
passed on July 11, 2006. Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide its letter No.
EMD/CI/49/2006-458 dated July 19, 2006 gave its approval in principle to the scheme of the transaction.

During the year 2012, JS Bank Limited (the Bank), a subsidiary of JSCL, acquired 25,525,169 shares of the
Company from JSCL and other shareholders against issuance of 185,321,537 shares in lieu thereof. As a
result, the principle ownership of the Company was transferred to the Bank. Presently, the Company is a
subsidiary of JS Bank Limited.

During the year 2015, three Stock Exchanges namely Karachi Stock Exchange, Lahore Stock Exchange and
Islamabad Stock Exchange were integrated into Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX). As a result, the Company
is a Trading Right Entitlement (TRE) Certificate holder of Pakistan Stock Exchange besides being a member
of Pakistan Mercantile Exchange.

The Company operates through Eight branches: Two in Karachi, while one each in Lahore, Islamabad,
Hyderabad, Rawalpindi, Multan, Peshawar and Faisalabad besides head (registered) office based in
Karachi.

The registered office of the Company is situated at The Center, 17th & 18th Floor, Plot No. 28, S.B.5,
Abdullah Haroon Road, Karachi.

Principle bhusiness activities

The principle business activities of the Company are Equities brokerage, Money Market Brokerage, Forex
Brokerage, Commodity brokerage, Investment banking, Underwriting, Book Runner, Consultancy and
Economic & Equity Research.



Calendar Of Major Events

' 28-Apr-21

18-Feb-21

Approval of annual Financial results for - 20th Annual General
financial results for the 1st quarter, Meeting (AGM)

the year ended approved by the - Approval of annual accounts
December 31, 2020 Board. by shareholders

by Board - Appointment of Auditors and

fixation of its remuneration.
- Approval of Buy Back of
Shares

Financial results for JS Global awarded
the Half Year, the Certificate of
approved by the Merit during the Best
Board. Corporate Report
Awards 2020
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JS Global in the capacity of
Consultant to the issue and
Book Runner has undertaken
the single-largest, historical
and record setting private
sector IPO of Air Link

Feb 9, 2022

JS Global Capital Limited has also
secured the Certificate of Merit in
financial services category in Best
Presented Annual Report Award from
the South Asian Federation of
Accountant (SAFA).

Approval of financial
results for the 3rd
quarter ended
September 30, 2021
by Board

Approval of annual
budget (FY-2022) by
Board

03

ANNUAL REPORT
2021

ZJS



1991

BUSINESS ESTABLISHED

First brokerage
house of Pakistan
Stock Exchange to
corporatize itself in

1991

2015

NCS ACCOUNTS
OF NCCPL

First brokerage firm
to introduce NCS
accounts of National
Clearing Company
Limited in 2015

AWARDS PAKISTAN

"JS Global awarded the
Certificate of Merit
during the Best
Corporate Report
Awards 2020 from the
the Institute of
Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan (ICAP) and
the Institute of Cost and
Management
Accountants of Pakistan
(ICMA Pakistan)."

Journey so Far

First brokerage firm

equity house partner

accounts of Central

Company in 2015

BEST CORPORATE REPORT

1993 2001

FOREIGN PARTNER ADVISOR - ICI AND

PACKAGES TFC

First brokerage firm
to be appointed as
Arranger and
Advisor for ICl and
Packages TFC in
2001

to have a foreign

in 1993

NCS ACCOUNTS INVESTMENT CONFERENCE
OF NCCPL
First brokerage firm First & only brokerage

firm to hold an

investment conference

in collaboration with
the Govt. and PSXin
favor of the Reclassifi-
cation of Pakistan into

the MSCI Emerging
Markets Index in 2016,
which has successfully

been materialized.

to introduce DSS

Depositary

2021
)

BEST CORPORATE REPORT
AWARDS SAFA

JS Global Capital
Limited has also
secured the Certificate
of Merit in financial
services category in
Best Presented Annual
Report Award from the
South Asian Federation
of Accountant (SAFA).

2003

First brokerage firm
to be appointed as
Primary Dealer by
State Bank of
Pakistan in 2003

COMMERCIAL PAPER

First & only brokerage
firm to issue a
Commercial Paper —
PKR 1,000 mn

2006

PRIMARY DEALER BY SBP

MARKET MAKER FOR
MOBILINK TFC

First brokerage
house to act as
Market Maker for
Mobilink TFC in
2006

AGP IPO

JS Gilobal Capital
Limited, in its capacity
as a consultant to the

issue successfully

carried out IPO of
AGP Limited,
Pakistan’s largest IPO
of Pharmaceutical
Sector.

Js
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2009 2009 2013 2013
I S S S

BOOK BUILDING FOR FINANCIAL INFORMATION INTERNATIONALLY MULTI-EXCHANGE MARGIN FINANCING
NEW LISTINGS EXCHANGE SOFTWARE SOLUTION TRADING SOLUTION SYSTEM
First brokerage firm First brokerage firm First brokerage firm First brokerage firm First brokerage firm
to introduce book to introduce to introduce an to introduce a to introduce Margin
building for new Financial Informa- internationally multi-exchange Financing System in
listings in Pakistan tion Exchange (FIX) acclaimed software trading solution in 2013
in 2008 in 2009 solution in 2009 2013 -PSX &
PMEX

2019 2020 2020 2021 2021

CFA AWARDS EXCHANGE TRADED FUNDS ASC|)A'\:MCOOI\1NEF\I/D- I,EAN\éoETE COMMERCIAL PAPER AIRLINK IPO
JSGCL was honored First brokerage house Asiamoney, UK’s First & only JS Global in the
this year by the grace to provide market leading business and brokerage firm to capacity of Consultant
of the Almighty at the making services to financial publications issue a 2nd to the issue and Book
16th CFA Awards, as exchange traded of Asia, has awarded Commercial Paper — Runner has undertaken

it was the recipient of a funds in PSX top honors to JSSGCL PKR 1.000 mn the single-largest
record 5 awards, clean in their Asiamoney ’ historical and record
sweeping the eyent in Broker’s Poll for 2020. setting private sector
afeatthatis IPO of Air Link Commu-
unmatched to this nication
date.
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Vision
To be the leader in

the financial
service sector
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Mission
To ensure growth of
various financial
services by creating
new products

and services in
financial sector

ANNUAL REPORT JS
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Corporate Culture and Core Values

We strive for
Quality best quality
services for our
clients

We anticipate

. change, create new
solutions for our
customers

Our Success is
incremental value for
our clients and
shareholders.

Value

__ Consistently
Responsibility delivering our
commitment.

O == ==(e
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Geographical presence
O Karachi

O Hyderabad

O Multan

O Faisalabad

O Lahore

O Isalamabad

O Peshawar
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Company information

Board of Directors
Mr. Shahab Anwar Khawaja

Mr. Muhammad Kamran Nasir

Mr. Iftikhar Ahmed Rao

Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Amanullah
Mr. Salaal Hasan

Ms. Shireen Raza

Mr. Hasan Saeed Akbar

* Syed Ghaus Ahmad

Audit Committee

Mr. Iftikhar Ahmed Rao
Mr. Salaal Hasan

Ms. Shireen Raza

Mr. Hasan Saeed Akbar

Risk Management Committee

Mr. Shahab Anwar Khawaja

Mr. Muhammad Kamran Nasir

Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Amanullah
* Syed Ghaus Ahmad

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Mr. Iftikhar Ahmed Rao

Mr. Muhammad Kamran Nasir

Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Amanullah
* Syed Ghaus Ahmad

Mr. Hasan Saeed Akbar

Chairman - Independent
Director

Chief Executive Officer
Independent Director
Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Chairman
Member
Member
Member

Chairman
Member
Member
Member

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member

* Syed Ghaus Ahmed has tendered his resignation subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2021

which was approved in the BOD meeting held on February 18, 2022.

Mr. Fahad Muslim
Syed Sufyan Ahmed

External Auditor

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2 Beaumont Road

Karachi
Legal Advisors

Bawaney & Partners

3rd & 4th Floors, 68-C, Lane-13, Bukhari Commercial Area, Phase-VI, D.H.A., Karachi.

Js
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Abdul Majeed Khoso

1102 Kashif Center, Shahrah e Faisal, Karachi

S.A Law Associates

Office No. 409, 4th Floor, Land Mark Plaza, Near Jang Press, Off. |.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi.

Bankers

JS Bank Limited Banklslami Pakistan Limited
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited MCB Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited Habib Metropolitan Bank
Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited United Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan Limited Askari Bank Limited

Faysal Bank Limited Sindh Bank Limited

Meezan Bank Limited Summit Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

Share Registrar

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited

CDC House, 99 — B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi
Registered Office

The Center 17th & 18th Floor, Plot No. 28, S.B.5, Abdullah Haroon Road, Karachi.

UAN: (+92-21) 111 574 111 Fax: (+92-21) 3280 0167
Web: www.jsgcl.com | www.jsglobalonline.com

ANNUAL REPORT
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Ownership, Operating Structure And Relationship
With Group Companies

As at reporting date, JS Bank Limited (a local Company) is the parent Company who majorly
held the shares of JS Global Capital Limited i.e. 92.90%

Company does not have any subsidiary company. However, it operates under the Group
structure of JS Group

Jahangir
Siddiqui &

. Co Limited
AR (USCL) 4

JS Bank
Limited
| (JSCL holds |
\\ 75.02%
of JSBL)

|
|
|
! JS
I

JS Global
Investments |

Capital st
Limted - -~~~ =-=—=-=---(-~—=-=—"=——-—=—=—"=—"—-=---+- Limited

| Ul Uit
of JSGCL) A\ of JSIL)

Disclosure of heneficial (including indirect) ownership

Mr. Jahangir Siddiqui is the ultimate benefit owner of JS Global Capital Limited

Significant plans and decisions such as corporate
restructuring, business expansion and
discontinuance of operations etc.

The Company does not intend any immediate plans for corporate restructuring.

JS
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Entity Rating
Long Term Rating

A

Short Term Rating

Broker Management Rating

Long Term Rating

B

Rating by PACRA

R
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Stakeholders’ engagement analysis,

policy and procedures.

Stakeholder identification is important not only for determining who the company’s stakeholders are but
also for determining the best way or ways to manage their expectations. The management of the
Company takes pleasure in identifying and assessing the needs of all the stakeholders of the Company.
Our stakeholders are all the people and corporations impacted by our business processes. Our

stakeholders include:

JS Global Capital Limited (“JSGCL’) works
collaboratively with stakeholders through open and
sustained relationships. It also protects fair dealing
with banks, better risk management, compliance
with laws and regulations, better corporate
recognition, and a greater commitment and
participation of valuable and knowledgeable
human resources and a focus on creating an
excellent image for the general public at large. The
Company endeavors to provide full and fair
disclosure of all relevant information to its
stakeholders and to provide a broad range of
information on strategy and financial information
through its Annual Report and website for all
stakeholders.

Stakeholders’ Engagement

A) Shareholders

Engagement

JSGCL is committed at all times to disclose
and distribute all the information to the
public in full and in a timely and accurate
manner, in accordance with the listing rules
stipulated by the Pakistan Stock Exchange

(“PSX”), as well as the Securities and

Exchange @ Commission of Pakistan
(“SECP?”).
All disclosures and announcements

submitted to the PSX and also available on
the Company's Investor Relations website.
The Company also makes timely public
announcements of relevant information
through PSX and the Company's website.

Communicate all essential and relevant
information to shareholders and other
potential investors in balanced, effective,
accurate and straightforward language.

The confidence put in the Company by the
investors is honored and acknowledged by
providing them with fair operating results of
the Company. General meetings provide the
shareholders a platform to voice their
concerns and raise their queries which are
addressed appropriately. The Company
also engages shareholders through
issuance of annual/quarterly financial
reports and notices/updates.

Quarterly, Half-Yearly and Annual Reports
Analyst briefing

Activity Frequency
Annual General Meetings Annually
Extraordinary General Meetings As required

Annually / Quarterly
Ongoing basis

JS
Global Capital Limited

VAR
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B)

C)

Customers
Engagement
The Company's goal is to retain customers

and build brand reputation so that the
company’s name becomes synonymous

with a "customer-focused culture". The

Company has always given priority to
Customer  Relationship  through fair
treatment of customers and high customer
satisfaction and loyalty by dedicated.

JSGCL have a comprehensive customer
protection policy that encompasses broad

guidelines to manage the customers
throughout their journey, ranging from
product development, sales practices,
marketing activities, communication
protocols and handling of customers.

In addition, besides a comprehensive sales
team a fully dedicated customer support
team to meet the daily needs of customers
and improve the customer journey,
customer support team also ensures
diligent ~ complaint  closures, while
maintaining high  Fair Treatment of
Customers standards.

Activity

Frequency

Online, phone, social media and postal
communication.
Customer satisfaction surveys and feedback

Regular and on need basis

On need basis

Employees

Engagement

The company has an excellent mix of
professional employees who are well
engaged and devoted to their respective
jobs. Our Human Resources department
always encourages employees to adopt
such policies that promote a culture of
reward based on merit and promote

teamwork. We believe to manage them by
leading rather than by driving. We employ
the best individuals and strive to retain,
motivate, empower and reward them for
their contributions. We are committed to
providing the perfect work environment for
our employees to achieve the highest level
of performance possible.

Building the best teams in the industry

Activity Frequency
Multiple in-house and external trainings are | Continuous
conducted for continuing professional
developments of our employees. The Company
provides a nurturing and employee friendly work
environment.
Regular employee surveys to understand and act
on needs and wellbeing
Offering personalized experiences and
opportunities for personal and professional
growth
ANNUAL REPORT
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D)

E)

F)

Banks and other lenders;

Engagement
We value our relationship with banks and
financial institutions, the company has

other institutes at attractive rates. We also
engaged with bank on regular basis to
handle daily operations i.e. settlement with
National Clearing Company Limited and
local and international clients’ funds

issued short-term commercial paper and management.
secured long-term facilities from banks and

Activity Frequency

We strive to comply with the agreed timelines and | Continuous

secure our lenders’ interest.

Regulators;

Engagement

To ensure sound business operations,
regulatory compliance and a transparent
legal environment, engagement at the
regulators' level is carried out frequently
throughout the year. Company constantly

liaisons with the Government authorities
and regulators in terms of matters/ issues
relating to develop new business products
in the Country. The Company abides by the
laws and regulations of the country and
makes certain that all the requirements of
relevant regulators are met in a timely
manner.

Activity

Frequency

Various statutory forms and returns are
periodically submitted as per requirements of the
law in addition to the information required by
regulators.

As and when required

Media;

Engagement

The media play an important role in today's
tech age. Whether they are traditional or
social media platforms, the need for rapid

communication and widespread distribution
of media has become the current need. The
Company continues to be aware of media
developments to maintain its digital
footprint, public reach and promote a
positive brand image.

Activity

Frequency

Hardcore Marketing, customers’ awareness/
education and various interviews of senior

management at mainstream media.

Continuous basis

Community/Society

Engagement
The Company engages with the general public
through CSR initiatives. This helps us identify the

need for intervention in sectors such as education,
health, welfare, environmental sustainability,
leadership development, promotion of sports, arts
and culture.

Js
//J S Global Capital Limited
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Activity

Frequency

CSR activities.

As and when required

G) Analysts

Engagement

To attract potential investors, the Company
regularly engages with analysts on details
of projects already disclosed to the
regulators, with due regard for regulatory

restrictions imposed on inside information
and/or trading to avoid any impact on the
Company’s reputation or share price. The
Company organize Analyst Briefi-ngs to
apprise the attendees on operational and
—financial performance.

Activity

Frequency

Corporate Briefing

As and when required

ENCOURAGING MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS
TO ATTEND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Company disseminates the notice for its
general and extraordinary meetings in English and
Urdu newspapers having vast circulation, besides
sending the notices to shareholders’ postal
addresses to encourage maximum attendance at
the meetings. The Company timely updates its
website with respect to all notices of general
meetings.

INVESTORS' RELATIONS SECTION ON THE
CORPORATE WEBSITE

The corporate website is maintained and regularly
updated under applicable regulatory requirements
to disseminate comprehensive and up-to-date

other requisite information besides the link to
SECP’s investor education portal, the ‘Jamapuniji’
and ‘Service Desk Management System’. The
‘Investors’ Relations’ section is also maintained on
the website www.jsgcl.com to promote investor
relations and facilitate access to the Company for
grievance / other query registration.

ISSUES RAISED IN LAST AGM

Twentieth Annual General Meeting of the
Company was held on April 22, 2021 via zoom
video conference call at 17th Floor, The Center,
Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi which
concluded with the passing of ordinary and special
resolutions. Contained in Notice of AGM.

Statement of value added and its distribution with

Company information  regarding financial  graphical presentation:
highlights, investor information, share pattern, and
Sr. | Head 2021 2020
No.
A Employees as remuneration
B Government as taxes (separately direct and indirect)
C Shareholders as dividends
D Providers of financial capital as financial charges
E Society as donation; and
F Retained within the business

ANNUAL REPORT
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INVESTORS’ GRIEVANCE POLICY

In order to create awareness amongst investors
about changes in laws/regulations that affect the
shareholders, company periodically sends notices
apprising them about introduction of new
laws/change in existing laws. Further, in order to
facilitate  investors to communicate their
grievances to the SECP, the website of the
Company has the link to the query form to lodge
any complaint and grievances. According to the
nature of the query, Company Secretary and/or
Head of Risk and Compliance respond to it within
72 hours. It is further reviewed and monitored by
CEO throughout the year.

The company shall take reasonable measures to
amicably redress customers’ grievances promptly
but not later than thirty days of receipt thereof in
accordance with the clause No. 27(2) of Securities
Brokers(Licensing & Operations) Regulations,
2016 (the Regulations) by providing amicable
solution of the issue to the customer in writing
and/or through recorded telephone line.

In case, resolution of the complaint is not mutually
agreed within thirty days of receipt of complaint,
the same shall be closed at company’s end to
comply with the Regulations, which requires
brokerage house to resolve the complaint within 30
days.

In case the complaint is directly lodged with SECP
/ PSX, the complaint shall be reopened and
requirement of closing/resolving complaint within
30 days shall not be applicable. The status of
pending/unresolved complaints shall be reviewed
by COO on monthly basis to identify any unusual
delay in resolving the complaints by the
management and identify any unusual or frequent
complaints which indicate control deficiency.

Furthermore, quarterly reports regarding number
of complaints received, redressed and unresolved
shall be submitted to the PSX by the company as
required under Securities Brokers (Licensing &
Operations). Regulations, 2016 and Internal
Control Framework and Compliance Function
guidelines of PSX.

There shall be system based controls over
recording, processing, tracking, escalation and
resolution of complaint. Proper database shall also
be available to save and fetch complaints records
and related resolution.

POLICY FOR SAFETY RECORDS OF THE
COMPANY

According to the type of data (e.g. soft / hard
format) and data requirements (call recordings of
different  markets, financial data, client
communication and any other documentation
retention requirement) required by different
regulators (e.g. SECP, PSX, PMEX, etc.) Company
will retain its data accordingly. The same shall be
monitored through RM&C department checklist on
periodic basis.

Recognizing the criticality of Information
Technology governance in achievement of its
overall strategic and operational objectives, IT
resources of the Company have been aligned to
provide the management with an efficient
operating and decision making platform that helps
in streamlining operations.

IT Governance Policy consists of the
following:

Maximizing return on technology investment
with controlled spending.

Safeguarding of Company’s data.
Development and up-gradation of different
modules to provide reliable, efficient and
timely information.

Improving user awareness on IT security to
detect and prevent vulnerabilities.

. Ensuring compatibility, integration
avoidance of redundancy

and

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BEST PRACTICES OF
CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors has complied with the
requirements for Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, the
listing regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange
and the requirements for Financial Reporting
framework of Securities & Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP).

JS
Global Capital Limited
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Statement of Compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance, Review Report by the
Company’s Auditors and Report of the Board’s
Audit Committee on adherence to the Code of
Corporate Governance are also included in this
Report.

STATEMENT OF ADOPTION AND ADHERENCE
WITH THE INTERNATIONAL INTEGRATED
REPORTING FRAMEWORK

Building and retaining the trust of the Company’s
internal and external stakeholders is essential to
our Company’s continued business success. The
Company’s primary objective under the subject is
to enhance shareholder and stakeholders’
awareness for better understanding and valued
decision making. We always strive to achieve our
objective through excellence in corporate
governance and human resource practices. JS
Global Capital Limited has been continuously
working towards transparency of the information
presented to its stakeholders.

It has taken into account various transformations
to adapt to a changing corporate environment and
the need for additional information beyond the
basic financial statements. This information
includes management commentary, governance
disclosures, performance analysis, forward outlook
and footnotes to the financial statement, to better
reflect the corporate reporting for information
needs of different stakeholders. The Company is
working with a strategy for generating value
creation for the organization and its stakeholders.

We hope that this Integrated Report will help our
stakeholder understand how we create value
through our business model. Since, Integrated
Reporting is at its early stages of development, we
are looking forward to make it more useful for our

shareholders.

The adoption of integrated reporting requires
involvement and support of the Board of Directors
and the leadership team. Henceforth,
Management of the Company provides guidance
to achieve the objectives by advising, assessing,
and monitoring business strategies; ensuring the
execution and modification of strategies; and
evaluating their own effectiveness and contribution
in these activities. Reporting is being monitored
and it is ensured that the relevant information is
shared in the most suited way for the stakeholders
of the Company. We will continue to improve the
information produced to make it even easier to
understand, while taking into account the opinion
of stakeholders reading this report.

Unreserved Compliance with International Finan-
cial Reporting Standards Issued by International
Accounting Standards Board.

The management of the Company strongly
believes in adherence to unreserved compliance
with all the applicable International Accounting
Standards (IAS)/ IFRS issued by International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) vital to true
and fair preparation and presentation of financial
information.

Compliance to IFRS encourages sufficient
disclosures of the financial statements that are
beneficial for informed decisions of stakeholders.
Financial statements for the year have been
prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards issued by IASB as are
applicable in Pakistan. Detailed IFRS adoption
status is explained in note 2 of annexed financial
statements.

ANNUAL REPORT
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Strategic Direction

Corporate Strategy

JS Global is committed to increase value for our shareholders by increasing their presence in the capital
market while advancing strategic expansion in business opportunities that align with our core
competencies. JS Global will strive to provide quality services to all our customers with in the country and
internationally.

The following core strategic objectives guide our business.

Market Share Growth

The company is focused on Market Shares Growth through a comprehensive Digital Strategy, a first
brokerage firm that provides state-of-the-art trading solutions to its customers.

Brand Image

The aim is to establish JS Global as a brand recognized for its provision of top quality services to its
customers.

Shareholders’ Equity

JS Global is making all necessary efforts to meet the expectations of the shareholders. There is
considerable risk monitoring, and all strategies are linked to the overall goal of maximizing returns on
investment.

Short term
By introducing new
products, innovative
digital trading services,
and provide
high-quality client
service to meet client

Medium-term

The most customer
centric and innovative
Brokerage Firm in the
country.

Long - term

Maximise long-term
shareholder value and
sustainable returns.

Maintain a sound fiscal
needs. foundation with a
. controlled risk
Continue to enhance management framework.

our controls and
implement sound and
prudent risk
management practices.

Developing our people
is important to us.
Human capital is an
asset and plays an
important role in our
success.

Continuously improving
processes to increase
operational efficien

JS
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Specific processes used to make strategic decisions

The strategic decision-making process focuses on the structural decisions that are needed to leverage an
organization's strengths, mitigate weaknesses, take advantage of opportunities and respond to threats.
Business strategy and market dynamics are regularly reviewed the Management of the Company. The
Board involve in the policy decision-making process by reviewing, approving and monitoring the
implementation of policy decisions.

Management Committee is typically involved in the strategic decision making process. Supported by key

team members, the Management Committee identifies an issue or opportunity and develops a
methodology to address it.

Key Performance Indicators

Strategic Objectives Key Performance Indicators Measure

Market Share Market Share Volume Growth Take technology to the next
level as an opportunity. Moving
forward, focusing on delivering
high-quality ~ services and
continuing to be a market

leader.
Brand Image Premier brokerage and Brand affinity, brand
financial services firm. recognition
Shareholders’ Equity Return of assets and return on Maximise long-term
equity shareholder value and

sustainable returns.

Strategies to overcome the liquidity problems,
including financing arrangements

JSGCL manages the working capital adequate liquidity available on the balance sheet. External sources
are organised after an in-depth analysis of the cash flows necessary to meet the need for investments or
additional working capital on specific events. Investments are made upon review and evaluation of all
factors associated with such investments and upon recommendation by the Investment Committee.

Significant changes from prior years

The Company bought back 3,079,703 ordinary shares @ PKR 80/- per share against the announced (3rd)
buy back offer of 3,991,525 ordinary shares. The total consideration paid was PKR 246.38 million out of
PKR 504.48 million reserves as at May 31, 2021. The cumulative percentage of holding by JS Bank Limit-
ed has now reached to 92.90%.

Significant changes in objectives and strategies

There is no significant deviation from our core strategic directions and objectives. Strategic direction and
objectives are outlined in different sections of this annual report.
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Key Markets

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited

Pakistan Stock Exchange was established on September 18, 1947 and formally incorporated on March 10,
1949 the name of ‘Karachi Stock Exchange’, as a Company limited by Guarantee. In October 1970, a second
stock exchange was established in Lahore to meet the stock trading needs to provincial metropolis. In
October 1989, Islamabad Stock Exchange established to cater to the investors of the northern parts of the
country. Because the three exchanges had separate management, trading interfaces, indices, and had no
mutualized structure, therefore the Stock Exchanges (Corporatization, Demutualization, and integration) Act,
2012 was promulgated by the Government of Pakistan which ultimately resulted in the exchanges integrating
their operation effective January 11, 2016 under the new name ‘Pakistan Stock Exchange’ (PSX).

Pakistan Mercantile Exchanges Limited

Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited (PMEX) is the country’s first and only demutualized commodity
futures exchanges, licensed and regulated by the Securities and exchanges Commission of Pakistan
(SECP). Based on sophisticated multidimensional infrastructure and state-of-the-art technology, PMEX offer
a complete suite of services i.e. trading, clearing & settlement, custody as well as back office, all under one
roof.

PMEX was formed in 2002 and started its operation in March 2007 offering a diverse range of domestic and
international products across multiple asset classes. PMEX is demutualized exchanges and the
shareholding is completely institution based.

Js
//J S Global capital Limited 26



Key Services

01

03

05

ONLINE TRADING
JS GlobalOnline is Pakistan Fastest growing Online Trading

service. With continued focus on customer Satisfaction,
Online Trading is actively involved in developing new
products and services.

EQUITY BROKERAGE

JS Gilobal's Equity Sales and trading team provides a broad
range of services for local Individual and Institutional as well
as Foreign investors.

FIXED INCOME SALES AND FOREX

The Fixed Income and Forex trading facility at JS Global is
one of the oldest and the largest in the brokerage Industry.

INVESTMENT BANKING GROUP

JS Gilobal’s Investment Banking Group serves a large client
base of leading Domestic and Multinational companies.

RESEARCH

JS Research has been a pioneer in the Pakistan Equity
Brokerage industry.

COMMODITIES BROKERAGE
JS Global’'s commodities trading team provides leading

commodities brokerage service to individuals and institutions

across Pakistan.
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Key Products
Equities
Regular/Ready Market

In this product, shares/stocks of all companies listed
are traded. Ready market is the core market of PSX
where settlements take place on a T+2 basis and
accounts for a major portion of daily volumes of the
exchange. Ready market transaction provide the
basis of all leverage markets and products available
in the exchange. Leverage products include MTS,

MFS, Deliverable Futures contract and equity ETFs.

Negotiated Deal Market

This is not part of the mainstream market transac-
tions. Here negotiated deals are conducted outside
the Exchange Trading Systems and are reported
through the interface provided by the Exchange.
These deals may also be called Off Market Transac-
tions. These transactions are conducted between
brokers.

REIT (Real Estate Investment Trust)

REIT is a fund based trust that owns income-pro-
ducing real estate, buys real estate, develops, man-
age/ operates and sells real estate assets. REITs
are modelled after mutual funds where all taxable
income is paid out as dividends to shareholders.

Deliverable Futures Contract (DFC)

DFCs are forward contracts to buy or sell a certain
underlying instrument with actual delivery of the said
instrument occurring. The minimum lot for purchas-
ing these shares is 500 shares. Settlement takes
place 30 days after the contract is purchased. The
Opening of the Contract is Monday, preceding the
last Friday of the month. The Expiration of the DFC
is the last Friday of the calendar month.

Stock Index Futures Contract (SIFC)

SIFC is an agreement to buy or sell a standardized
value of a stock index (basket of shares) on a future
date at a specified price. SIFC gives opportunity to
investors to trade in entire stock market by buying
index futures instead of buying individual securities
with the efficiency of mutual funds. Currently 90
days SIFCs are available at PSX.

Single Stock Cash Settled Futures (CSF)

It is like a standardized contract which allows buying
or selling a certain underlying instrument at a certain
date in the future, at specified price. Single Cash
Settled Futures are standardized contracts to
buy/sell single stock futures to be settled in cash,
where the result of the trade is the cash difference
between the buying and selling price. Settlement
occurs purely on cash basis. Settlement can occur
30, 60, & 90 days after the contract is purchased.

Margin Trading System (MTS)

In MTS (Margin Trading System), an investor can
buy MTS eligible securities having a part percentage
of funds available of the total value of MTS eligible
securities bought. An investor may buy a number of
MTS eligible securities while having only a fixed
percentage of funds available. The remaining
amount is financed or leveraged by the Brokerage
firm. The percentage of funds required for MTS is
defined by the Brokerage firm which shall not be
less than 15% of the total value of MTS eligible
securities purchased or VAR (Value at Risk — A
percentage number signifying the decline in the
value of an asset class in a particular period of time).
A mark-up rate of not more than Kibor+8% is
charged against the leveraged securities held under
MTS. Margin Trading Contracts are settled in T+2
days.

Margin Financing System (MFS)

In MFS (Margin Financing System), an investor can
buy MTS eligible securities having a part percentage
of funds available of the total value of MTS eligible
securities bought. MFS can be obtained as per
agreed Financier Participation Ratio (FPR). Howev-
er, minimum of 25% or VaR whichever is higher
should be contributed by Financee. Financing terms
and conditions are pre-determined by Margin Finan-
cee and Margin Financier. NCCPL provides a
system to MFS Participants for recording and settle-
ment of MF Transactions. Margin Financing facility
is made available only in Eligible Securities. All MF
Transactions are based on counterparty risk in a
disclosed manner.
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Exchange Traded Fund

ETF is a pooled investment vehicle with units that
can be bought or sold on the Stock Exchange at a
market-determined price. Similar to mutual funds
units, ETF owns the underlying assets (stocks or
bonds) and offers investors a proportionate share in
a pool of stocks, bonds, and other assets. The ETFs
have Net Asset Values (NAVs) which are listed on
PSX website. The NAV of an ETF is the sum of
marked-to-market values of the individual portfolio
holdings plus the portion of the assets held in cash
and cash equivalents, less all the accrued ETF
expenses. The NAVs of these securities are
disseminated during the day. The Settlement Dates
of these securities is T + 2.

Investment Banking
IPO / Listing / Book Building

End to end transaction management, including
corporate restructuring, valuation, designing of
marketing material, corporate road shows and book
building process.

Right Issues

Advisory and arrangement of a right issue
transaction for clients, valuations, preparation of
marketing material, liaising with regulatory
authorities and concluding the transaction.

Debt Transactions

Assisting companies in securing funding via various
instruments, such as TFCs, Sukuk, Commercial
papers, strategic investors, etc.

Mergers & Acquisition

We provide in-depth analysis and guidance on not
only the identification of potential targets, but also
the management of the entire acquisition and
merger and a comprehensive approach that meets
the requirements of all stakeholders.

Commodities

Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited is Pakistan's
first commodity futures market with the major
commodities traded on the exchange are gold,
crude oil silver, Platinum, Copper, NSDQ, S&P,
Dow Jones, JPY EQTY, Major currencies, Natural
Gas, and Cotton.

Fixed Income

Fixed income securities include Money Market,
Corporate Debt securities/ bonds and Government
Debt securities/ bonds. These bonds are investment
products that provide a return in the form of fixed
periodic payments as mark-up and the eventual
return of principal. Any investor can purchase these
securities listed at the Stock Exchange through
Broker.

Money Market instruments

These include T-Bill, overnight, Repo, Reverse
Repo, Commercial Paper, TDR, COI & LOP. In
Islamic Terms the products include Mudarba,
Musharka, Murahaba, & Bai-Muajjal.

Corporate Debt Instruments

These include Term Finance Certificates (TFCs),
SUKUK Certificates, Registered Bonds, Corporate
Bonds etc., and all kinds of debt instruments issued
by any Pakistani company or corporation registered
in Pakistan.

Government Debt Instruments

These are debt instruments issued by the
Government of Pakistan. These include PIBs,
Treasury Bills, National Savings Bonds, and Islamic
ljarah Sukuks.

Foreign Exchange
Facilitate banks in foreign exchange transactions

(buying /selling of dollars in spot, forward and
swaps)
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Key risks and opportunities effecting availability,
quality and affordability of capitals in the
short, medium and long term.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Board’s efforts for determining the company’s level of risk tolerance by establishing risk
management policies.

The Management recognizes the risks to which the Company is exposed to, which are reviewed by the
Board of Directors and he Board of Directors ensure that the required culture, practices and systems are in
place to address such risks.

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for the risk management and determining the
company’s level of risk tolerance. In this regard, the Board has established and approved Risk Management
Policy. The board regularly undertakes an overall review of business risks to ensure that the management
maintains a sound system of risk identification, risk management and related systemic and internal controls
to safeguard assets, resources, reputation and interest of the Company and shareholders. In addition to this
the Board also reviews reports from various third party service providers, auditors and consultants to remain
updated on key operational and financial matters of the Company.

The Board shall mainly be responsible for the following risk management activities:

Oversight of an integrated Company-wide risk management framework;
Establishing a Company-wide strategy incorporating the risk management strategy;

* Defining the overall risk appetite of the Company and maintaining adequate capital for carrying out
business activities under various business lines and products;

e Defining the risk management policies;

*  Ensuring implementation of the risk management framework, and maintaining adequate and capable
infrastructure to support the framework;

* Reviewing exception reports prepared by the Risk Management Division highlighting deviations of
activities and operations from established standards; and

* Regularly reviewing significant risk issues to determine their impact on the Company’s strategy and
aligning the strategy to address the existing or potential risks.

Strategy to Mitigate the Risk

Risk is referred to as a possibility that the outcome of an action or event could bring adverse impacts
resulting in direct losses of earnings/capital, or imposition of constraints on the Company’s ability to meet its
business objectives. Risks may therefore potentially hinder the Company’s ability to continue its ongoing
business as planned, or to take benefit of opportunities to enhance stakeholder value.

The Company has implemented sound risk management policies and controls which are depicted in our
entity rating of AA and A1+ for the long and short term and Broker Management Rating of BMR I.

These risks and their sub-categories are defined as follows for which the Company’s management shall
ensure effective management through an integrated Company-wide risk management and Internal Control
mechanism.
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Framework:

Sr. No. Risk type Strategy to mitigate the risk Likelihood Materiality

1 Credit Risk Credit risk of the Company arises principally Low Medium
from the trade debts, short term
investments, loans and advances, deposits
and other receivables. The carrying amount
of financial assets represents the maximum
credit exposure. To reduce the exposure to
credit risk, the Company has developed its
own risk management policies and
guidelines whereby clients are provided
trading limits according to their worth and
proper margins are collected and
maintained from the clients.

The Company’s policy is to enter into
financial contracts in accordance with the
internal risk management policies and
investment and operational guidelines
approved by the Board of Directors. In
addition, credit risk is also minimized due to
the fact that the Company invests only in
high quality financial assets, majority of
which have been rated by a reputable rating
agency.

2 Market Risk To manage and control market risk, a High High
well-defined risk management structure
approved by the Board. Risk Management
Department is actively involved in
identifying, measuring and setting risk
control limit to optimise the risk and return of
the Company. The Company’s Investment
Committee (IC) are primarily responsible for
the oversight of the market risk, supported
by Risk Management Department (RMD).

3 Interest Rate Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value Low Low
Risk or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates.

The Company manages fair value risk by
investing primarily in variable rate term
finance certificates, preferably with no cap
and floor which insulates the Company from
fair value interest rate risk, as coupon rates
correspond with current market interest rate.
The Company also invests in fixed rated
bank accounts and Government securities
such as Market Treasury Bills and Pakistan
Investment Bonds.
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Sr. No. Risk type Strategy to mitigate the risk Likelihood Materiality

4 Operational Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect Medium Medium
Risk loss arising from a wide variety of causes
associated with the processes, technology
and infrastructure supporting the Company’s
operations either internally within the
Company or externally at the Company's
service providers, and from external factors
other than credit, market and liquidity risks
such as those arising from legal and
regulatory requirements and generally
accepted standards  of  investment
management behavior. Operational risks
arise from all of the Company’s activities.

The Company’s objective is to manage
operational risk so as to balance limiting of
financial losses and damage to its reputation
with achieving its investment objective of
generating returns for investors.

The Company has the strategy for
identification, assessment, mitigation,
monitoring reporting and measurement of
Operational Risk. The management ensures
that adequate strategies are implemented to
achieve the operational objective of the
Company.

5 Liquidity Risk Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will Low Low
encounter difficulty in meeting its financial
obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial asset. Liquidity risk
arises because of the possibility that the
Company could be required to pay its
liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in
raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial liabilities as they fall
due. Prudent liquidity risk management
implies maintaining sufficient cash and
marketable securities, the availability of
funding to an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability to
close out market positions due to the
dynamic nature of the business. The
Company's treasury aims at maintaining
flexibility in funding by keeping committed
credit lines available.

The Company has in place Board Approved
policy for Liquidity Risk Management. The
policy comprehensively defines  risk
methodology, control structure role and
responsibility for managing the risk.
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Opportunity.

The pro-active actions by the government & central bank supported economic activity and led to a GDP
growth of 3.9% during CY21, and Moreover, the participation in equity markets remained robust during CY21
as daily traded volumes registered a jump of 44% as compared to the previous year. (Economic and stock
market described in detail in the report of the Director). The situation created the opportunities for the
business growth and economic development. The company emphasized seizing opportunities by leveraging
our strengths and capabilities.

The Company's management has focused on maintaining its position as a leading brokerage and corporate
banking company in Pakistan. The Company in the capacity of Consultant to the issue and Book Runner has
undertaken the single-largest, historical and record setting private sector IPO.

Financial results reflect our performance which posted growth of 98.37%, the company also declared cash
dividends of 150% during the period.

Rigorous assessment of major risks .

the Board of Directors have carried out a detailed assessment of risks facing the Company originating from
various sources. For quick snapshot of various types of risks, please refer risk and opportunities sections of
our report. The Board of Directors are satisfied with the Company’s risk management practices and the
mitigating strategies adopted to counter such risks.

Initiatives taken by management to promote and enable innovation

Management is proud to create a culture which promotes innovative thinking, creates innovative platforms
and enhances employee engagement initiatives. Over the year, the following initiatives were undertaken by
management:

The Company always been at the forefront of developing new products and services for the capital markets
of Pakistan. In this context, another step forward has been taken by the Company to develop and deliver a
new product to the capital market i.e. “Exchange Traded Fund (ETF) and professional market making.

the IT function proactively from an innovation standpoint, bringing ideas to the business.

During the COVID-19 outbreak, our IT innovation was very helpful and we worked efficiently and smoothly.
Materiality Approach

In addition to reporting all legally required events/transactions, management has taken a relatively important
approach to communicating effectively with all stakeholders.

The Board approved a formal materiality threshold to be taken into consideration by management when
disclosing or reporting financial information. We also evaluate key issues according to their relevance to our
strategic plans and objectives.

Inadequacy in the capital structure and plans to address such inadequacy.

In compliance with the regulatory requirement, the minimum net worth of the trading and clearing member is
PKR 500 million, whereas the net value of the Company at the end of year FY2021 is PKR 2,196 million.
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Profile of Board of Directors

Mr. Shahab Anwar Khawaja

Independent Director & Chairman

Mr. Shahab Khawaja served in the public sector for almost 36 years as a career Civil Servant of
Pakistan Administrative Service (previously District Management Group) and held many key positions
such as Federal Secretary of Privatization and Industries and Production, Additional Secretary
Population Welfare, Joint Secretary Economic Affairs Division, CEO of Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Authority (SMEDA) and held Director's position in various renowned companies.

He has extensive experience in field of social development particularly in legal matters, community
mobilization and community development. He is also a Certified Director, under Listed Companies’
requirements, as prescribed by SECP.

Earlier to above mentioned positions, Mr. Shahab Khawaja also remained Secretary to Department of
Agriculture and Livestock and Dairy Development, Government of Punjab. After his retirement, he also
held the positions of CEO, Competitiveness Support Fund (CSF), a joint Project of Ministry of Finance
and USAID and as the Executive Director, Fertilizer Manufacturers of Pakistan Advisory Council
(FMPAC). He has served on a number of Public Sector Organizations’ Boards and has represented
Government of Pakistan in multiple International Bodies and Seminars such as UNDP, UNFPA,
UNIDO, ECOSOC APOQ etc. Currently, he also acts as Chairman of Lahore General Hospital.

The Academic and professional qualification of Mr. Shahab Khawaja includes MSc. in Chemistry, Post
Graduate Diplomas in Development Administration from Birmingham University, UK and in Public
Policy from University of Connecticut Hartford, USA.

Mr. Shahab Anwar Khawaja satisfies all criteria of independence as laid down under Companies Act,
2017 and other laws and regulations applicable on Company for which he has also submitted his
declaration of independence to the Company.

Mr. Iftikhar Ahmed Rao

Independent Director

Mr. Iftikhar Ahmed Rao has an experience of over 37 years in Pak Navy and was awarded “Sword of
Honour” on commissioning, Tamgha-e-Imtiaz (Military), Sitara-e-Imtiaz (Military), Hilal-e-Imtiaz(Military)
and Pak-China friendship medal awarded by the Government of China.

He has an extensive experience onboard ships and aviation commanded Ships as well as Aviation
squadrons and Pakistan Naval Aviation. He has served on the post of of Director of Plans, Principal
Secretary to the Chief of Naval Staff and Deputy Chief of Naval Staff (Operations) in Naval Head
Quarters. He has also served as MD in KS&EW and Abu Dhabi Pakistan Holding Limited (now merged
with Mubadla). He has also served as an Advisor to Royal Saudi Naval Forces. He was a member of
Board of Governors of Bahria University, Gwadar Port Implementation Committee and Policy Board for
development of Shipbuilding Industry which was headed by Prime Minister. He has also served as a
Vice Chairman of Executive Committee for Shipbuilding.

Mr. Iftikhar Ahmed Rao satisfies all criteria of independence as laid down under Companies Act, 2017
and other laws and regulations applicable on Company for which he has also submitted his declaration
of independence to the Company.
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Mr. Muhammad Kamran Nasir

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Muhammad Kamran Nasir joined JS Group in 2010 and has been leading JS Global Capital
Limited, one of the largest brokerage and investment banking firm which is listed on the stock exchange,
as its Chief Executive Officer since 2011.

Mr. Nasir is a Chartered Accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England & Wales
and also a Chartered Certified Accountant from the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants U.K.
He brings with him rich experience of Investment Banking and handle complex financial matters. His
Investment Banking experiences ranges from advising companies on mergers, acquisitions, divestures,
debt raising and re-profiling including taking companies public.

Besides this, he has also held various senior level positions within the Financial Sector and Multinational
companies including Chief Financial Officer. He has played an instrumental role in setting up and
managing one of the largest Brokerage Divisions in his previous company that performed exceptionally
well. He has also been associated with KPMG where he was primarily involved in audits of Financial
Sector Institutions particularly Commercial Banks.

Mr. Nasir is a Certified Director from the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance. He has been a
notable speaker in many public/commercial speaking events ranging from specialized topics to covering
Pakistan Capital Markets on Electronic Media. He has wide experience of engaging with Global Fund
Managers and has conducted various Road Shows in London, USA and elsewhere to showcase
Pakistan Corporate Sector. Due to his diverse experience he is routinely invited by the Apex and
Frontline Regulatory Bodies in Pakistan to deliberate on a host of technical and specialized matters.

Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Amanuliah

Executive Director

Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Amanullah is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan. He is a certified Director from the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance. He previously
served on the Boards of Jahangir Siddiqui Investment Bank Limited, JS Global Capital Limited, JS
Value Fund Limited and JS Investments Limited.

He joined JS Group in 2003 and was acting as Senior Executive Vice President of JS Bank Limited
before joining JS Global Capital Limited. He was previously associated at a senior level with A. F.
Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants, a member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers after having
qualified with them. Prior to A. F. Ferguson & Co., he worked with Ermnst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat
Hyder. During his association with the firm, he was involved in various Statutory and Special
assignments relating to Commercial banks, Non-Banking Finance Companies, Pharmaceutical and
Automobile sectors.

ANNUAL REPORT
39 2021 //JS



Mr. Hasan Saeed Akbar

Non Executive Director

Hasan Saeed is a seasoned public relations and corporate communications specialist. He holds
certifications in Project Management and Risk Management from the University of Adelaide.

He brings with him over ten years of experience in blue-chip organizations across the energy, logistics
and financial sectors.

Currently, he leads the Communications and Projects function at JS Bank, one of the countries fastest
growing financial institutions. Previously he has served in Telenor Microfinance Bank, TCS and
Pakistan State Oll.

Hasan has completed his Master of Business Administration from Institute of Business Management.
He has a passion for community development and social engagement. He has worked pro-bono as
General Secretary for Rotary International as well as The Citizens Foundation.

Ms. Shireen Raza

Non Executive Director

Shireen Raza is a value driven professional with over 22 years of experience in Banking on Corporate
and Commercial side for Long & Short Term Credit Facilities, Branch Banking and Operations. She is
currently serving as Head / EVP of Corporate Banking Department of JS Bank Limited in Lahore.

During her tenure at JS Bank Limited, she has successfully increased the Credit Portfolio and Trade
business, work alongwith Business Head for growth and enhancement of business opportunities with
existing and potential clients, develop and manage Asset portfolio to achieve growth in Fund / Non-fund
based credits and monitor the relationships to ensure risk and yield criteria are being met. She has
completed her Masters in Business Administration (MBA) Degree with concentration both in Marketing
& Finance subjects. During her professional career, She has served on senior management positions
of various leading banks in Pakistan.
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Mr. Salaal Hasan

Non Executive Director

Mr. Salaal Hasan is a private equity investor and venture capitalist serving as Director — Venture Capital
at the JS Group, Pakistan’s leading financial services conglomerate. Salaal also serves as the Head of
Ecosystem Development at JS Bank Limited and a Director at JS Global Capital Limited, where he
looks after technology investments, partnerships and accelerated growth via digitization.

He serves as a Board Member for Pakistani health-tech’s AugmentCare & Sehat and ed-tech
Knowledge Platform.

Prior to JS, Mr. Hasan was at PE+ Capital Advisors in Dubai, where he learnt private equity under the
mentorship of Dr. Sameer Al Ansari (former Chairman and CEO of Dubai International Capital) and
specialized in venture capital investments in MENA and EU based technology companies — including
the regions first FCA regulated crowd-funding platform.

Salaal started his career at the World Bank working with the Governance team on Pakistan’s “Doing
Business Index” and revenue mobilization.

Salaal earned his B.Eng. (Honours) in Chemical Engineering and Business Management from the
University of Birmingham where he was awarded an excellence scholarship.

Syed Ghaus Ahmad

Non Executive Director

Syed Ghaus Ahmad is top performing banking executive with over 18 years of demonstrated abilities

and a rich experience in areas of Business Development, Operations, Consumer Banking and Team
Management within Local and Multinational Banks. He is currently using his areas of expertise and
making a continued, significant contribution within the banking industry. He is currently acting as SEVP
—Head of Distribution in JS Bank Limited and associated with JS Bank Limited since April 2009. Before
that, he was associated with Atlas Bank Limited, Emirates Bank International / Union Bank / Standard
Chartered Bank, Bank Alfalah at different levels. He has done his BBA from American College of
Applied Arts, Los Angeles, California, USA in 1993. He has also obtained various courses and
certifications which includes Service Quality, International Commercial Banking —NIBAF, Values in
action, Passion of Service, Professional Selling Skills, Anti-Money Laundering, Banking Law & Practice,
Project Management, Leadership Management Course, Service Quality Par Excellence Standards,
Value added Advanced Selling Techniques and Strategic Framework.
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Directors’ Training and Orientation

Majority of the Directors have complied with the requirement of the Directors’ Training Program by obtaining
certification from the approved and accredited institutions.

In addition, the directors were formally orientated in BOD and its Committee meetings to keep them updated
of any amendment and their duties and responsibilities to allow them to effectively manage the company's
business on behalf of shareholders.

Disclosure of the annual performance review of Board
members and their committees, the CEO and the
Chairman is conducted by an external consultant.

The annual formal process of evaluation of performance of the Board as a whole and its committees was
performed by engaging external independent consultant - Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered
Accountants, a member firm of Grant Thornton International Limited.

The evaluation process was done by preparing performance assessment surveys, circulating survey
questionnaires to relevant Board members & received, collated and analyzed the survey responses to issue
the final report by GT. The report covered the performance of the:

Board as a whole.
Board committees and
Board members.
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A statement of which types of decisions are to he taken
by the board and which are to be delegated
to management

Board’s Function and Decision Making

Each member of the Board is fully aware of the responsibilities as an individual member as well as the
responsibilities of all members together as a board. The Board actively participates in all major decisions of
the Company including but not limited to approval of capital expenditure budgets, investments, related party
transactions and appointment of key personnel. The Board also monitors the Company's operations by
approval of financial statements, review of internal and external audit observations, if any and
recommendation of dividend. The Board has devised formal policies for conducting business and ensures
their monitoring through an independent outsourced Internal Auditors which continuously monitors
adherence to Company Policies

Matters Delegated to the Management

The responsibility of implementing the strategies as approved by the Board of Directors is that of the
management. The management conducts the routine business operations of the Company in an effective
and ethical manner in accordance with the strategies and goals approved by the Board and identifies and
administers the key risks and opportunities which could impact the Company in the ordinary course of
execution of its business. Management is also concerned in keeping the Board members updated regarding
any changes in the operating environment or risk profile. It is also the responsibility of management, with the
oversight of the Board and its Audit Committee, to prepare financial statements that fairly present the financial
position of the Company in accordance with applicable accounting standards and legal requirements.

External oversight of functions

The senior management ensures the efficiency of all its functions by regularly monitoring the KPIs and
assessing the goals assigned to each department;

All of our processes are examined by the internal audit function;,.

The Company ensures systems controls and procedures and penetration tested independently, once in
every two years.

Policy of remuneration to non-executive directors

Policy of remuneration paid to non-executive Directors including independent directors is given in relevant
section of director’s report.
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Policy for Security Clearance of Foreign Directors

The Company has submitted the requisite documents along with declaration with the Company Registration
Office (CRO), Islamabad and that in case his name is not cleared for security purposes by the Ministry of
Interior, the Company facilitates arrangement of such clearance, and in case the clearance is not arranged,
then the Company takes steps for replacement of such Director.

Board meetings held outside Pakistan during the year

There were no board meetings held outside Pakistan during the year.

Implementation of Governance Practices Exceeding
Legal Requirements

The management of JS Global Capital Limited believes to follow best governance practices that can be
implemented in the Company’s environment. To implement these practices, the minimum benchmark is to
comply with all the legal requirements. However, the management goes ahead to implement best
governance rules and practices that are followed globally and are in favor of the Company’s shareholders,
employees, environment and community.

Following additional governance practices implemented by the management include:

* Disbursement of additional corporate and financial information to shareholders and legal authorities,
although not required by any law, to make the Company’s affairs more transparent and to give better
insight of the Company’s affairs, policies and strategies.

* Implementation of Health, Safety and Environment Policy for better and safe work place environment for
employees particularly during novel COVID-19 pandemic.

Related parties

The Company has provided detailed information on related party transactions in its financial statements
annexed to this Annual Report. This disclosure complies with the requirements of 4th Schedule of the
Corporations Act, 2017 and the relevant International Financial Reporting Standards.

The Company maintains a comprehensive and updated list of all related parties. All transactions with related
parties arising in the normal course of business are carried out on an unbiased, arm’s length basis at normal
commercial terms and conditions. The Company has not entered into any contract or arrangement with the
related party other than in the ordinary course of business on an arm’s length basis.

The Company has a policy where all transactions with related parties where majority of Directors are
interested, are referred to the shareholders in a general meeting for approval. In compliance with the Code
of Corporate Governance and applicable laws, a comprehensive list of all related party transactions are
placed before the Audit Committee for review at the end of each quarter. After review by the Committee, the
transactions are considered and approved by the Board keeping in view the recommendations made by the
Committee.
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Policy for actual and perceived conflict of interest

All Directors are obligated to avoid actual, potential and perceived conflicts of interest. Agenda points for the
Board's proceedings are finalized after obtaining relevant information regarding vested interests and
quantification thereof, whereas all observations / suggestions of Board members during their proceedings
are accordingly recorded.

The Company shall be managed on the basis of high standards of professionalism, ethics and integrity. The
Company shall make decisions on the choice of markets, customers and activities on an objective basis. The
Company will not extend services to any Company in which any of its directors have, direct or indirect,
beneficial ownership of more than 20% ordinary voting shares unless: (1) this interest is previously disclosed;
(2) the decision is made without the presence or participation of the individual(s) concerned. The Company
will avoid any conflict of interest or appearance of impropriety by instituting a policy prohibiting the
employment (whether as employee, independent contractor or otherwise) of any parent, child, grandparent,
grandchild, brother or sister (or any entity controlled by any such person) of any officer, director or a person
holding more than 5% shares of the Company, unless (1) the family relationship is fully disclosed, and (2) the
decision to retain such services is notified to the Board of Directors.

The employees of JSGCL will only be allowed to trade in the regular / ready market. Employee of JSGCL will
not involve in intraday transactions and will retain their position for at least seven days from the date of
transaction. Further, the employee will actually settle the transaction on the settlement date. The employee
will not initiate transactions in the future market or any other leveraged market. The employees would not be
permitted to execute short sale in a security. No financing of any kind will be made available to the employees
from JSGCL. However, CEO shall be authorized to relax the said conditions if deemed necessary on a case
to case basis. Where any non-compliance of the above is noted, the Company shall inquire in writing the
reason for such violation. A copy of the inquiry letter along with response of the employee shall also be filed
in the employee’s personnel file maintained by HR.

Proprietary trades shall be executed on designated terminals by designated operators/traders and such
traders shall not be allowed to deal/execute orders of customer to avoid conflict of interest. The company
shall not take any direct or indirect advantage from any conflicting situation and shall act in the best interest
of the client.

In case of any conflict of interest identified the company will immediately inform its customers through
verifiable means. It will also be ensured that there is no direct or indirect advantage taken from the situation
and the company will always act in the best interest of the customers.

IT Governance Policy

Recognizing the criticality of Information Technology governance in achievement of its overall strategic and
operational objectives, IT resources of the Company have been aligned to provide the management with an
efficient operating and decision making platform that helps in streamlining operations.

IT Governance Policy consists of the following:

Maximizing return on technology investment with controlled spending.

Safeguarding of Company’s data.

Development and up-gradation of different modules to provide reliable, efficient and timely information.
Improving user awareness on IT security to detect and prevent vulnerabilities.

Ensuring compatibility, integration and avoidance of redundancy.
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Policy for safety records of the company

According to the type of data (e.g. soft / hard format) and data requirements (call recordings of different
markets, financial data, client communication and any other documentation retention requirement) required
by different regulators (e.g. SECP, PSX, PMEX, etc.) Company will retain its data accordingly. The same
shall be monitored through RM&C department checklist on periodic basis.

Investors’ Grievance Policy

In order to create awareness amongst investors about changes in laws/regulations that affect the
shareholders, company periodically sends notices apprising them about introduction of new laws/change in
existing laws. Further, in order to facilitate investors to communicate their grievances to the SECP, the
website of the Company has the link to the query form to lodge any complaint and grievances. According to
the nature of the query, Company Secretary and/or Head of Risk and Compliance respond to it within 72
hours. It is further reviewed and monitored by CEO throughout the year.

The company shall take reasonable measures to amicably redress customers’ grievances promptly but not
later than thirty days of receipt thereof in accordance with the clause No. 27(2) of Securities
Brokers(Licensing & Operations) Regulations, 2016 (the Regulations) by providing amicable solution of the
issue to the customer in writing and/or through recorded telephone line.

In case, resolution of the complaint is not mutually agreed within thirty days of receipt of complaint, the same
shall be closed at company’s end to comply with the Regulations, which requires brokerage house to resolve
the complaint within 30 days.

In case the complaint is directly lodged with SECP / PSX, the complaint shall be reopened and requirement
of closing/resolving complaint within 30 days shall not be applicable. The status of pending/unresolved
complaints shall be reviewed by COO on monthly basis to identify any unusual delay in resolving the
complaints by the management and identify any unusual or frequent complaints which indicate control
deficiency.

Furthermore, quarterly reports regarding number of complaints received, redressed and unresolved shall be
submitted to the PSX by the company as required under Securities Brokers (Licensing & Operations).
Regulations, 2016 and Internal Control Framework and Compliance Function guidelines of PSX.

There shall be system based controls over recording, processing, tracking, escalation and resolution of
complaint. Proper database shall also be available to save and fetch complaints records and related
resolution.

Whistle blowing policy

JS Global is committed to creating a climate where people can freely communicate their concerns or warn
against the possibility of fraud, non-compliance with the Company's policies, code of conduct and regulatory
framework, an effective reporting mechanism has been put in place.

This policy is designed to allow officers and all employees of the company to bring complaints to a designated
platform.

This policy governs procedures that must be followed when allegations of impropriety are made by a
whistleblower and such allegations:
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(i) regardless of scope, accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters, or
(i) regardless of the scope of liability, could cause serious damage to the JSGCL’s brand or reputation or,
(i) could result in a material liability to the JSSGCL.

This policy establishes guidelines and procedures for handling whistleblower claims. Consistent with the
JSGCL’s commitment to maintain the highest standards of integrity, compliance with the law and its Code of
Conduct is a responsibility that everyone in the JSGCL must assume. By appropriately responding to
allegations by employees, suppliers, customers or contractors that the company is not meeting its legal
obligations, the company can better support an environment where compliance is the norm and thereby
avoid a diminution in shareholder value.

Succession planning

The Company plans its manpower needs as far ahead as possible. Thus, the Company will endeavor to
maintain a required number of employees, possessing the necessary skills, experience, and qualifications,
to efficiently carry out its operations.

It is the Company policy to ensure that, for each key position, there is a documented succession plan to cover
the eventuality of the individual that holds that position no longer being employed by the Company.

In keeping with the Company manpower planning and internal vacancy policies, job succession planning will
be conducted and monitored by the relevant LOB Heads or Departmental Head in conjunction with Human
Resources Department. Managers will identify individuals in their area who demonstrate quality performance
and have potential for further growth based on their performance reviews and relevant job competencies as
defined in the current and next level job descriptions. These individuals will be especially monitored to
assess any training and development needs or any other job-related assistance in order to prepare them
for the next level job whenever it becomes available. Line Managers and Human Resources will work
together to identify and support these individuals and, wherever possible, JSGCL will strive to follow this
internal succession planning to promote from within existing employee ranks.

Human resource management policies

The backbone of any organization is its people. JS Global Capital Limited firmly believes in nurturing,
investing in and promoting its employees with the ultimate objective of ensuring a very high level of employee
satisfaction and efficiency, which in turn translates into high levels of client’s satisfaction. The Company is
committed to build a strong organizational culture that is shaped by empowered employees who
demonstrate a deep belief in Company’s vision and values. Therefore, Human Resource Management
(HRM) is an integral part of our business strategy. The Company fosters leadership, individual accountability
and teamwork

The main components of the Company’s HRM policy are:

* Selecting the right person, with the right experience, at the right time, offering the right compensation.

* Developing management philosophies and practices to promote and encourage motivation and
retention of the best employees.

Recognizing and rewarding employees’ contribution to the business.

Fostering the concept of team work and synergetic efforts

Encouraging and supporting team concepts and team building techniques.

Nurturing a climate of open communications between management and employees.

Making all reasonable efforts to achieve a high quality of work-life balance.
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Business continuity and disaster recovery plan

The Board of Directors ensures that the Company has an updated Business Continuity and Disaster
Recovery plan in place for the continuity of Company’s business and operations in case of any extra ordinary
circumstances.

The comprehensive plan is designed to ensure the protection of overall company’s operations and assets
along with regular archival and system-backups at remote sites.

The key highlights and actions of JS Global Capital Limited’s Business Continuity Plan is as follows:

* The Management has put in place-adequate systems of IT Security, real-time data backup and off-site
storage of data back-up at Company’s Site.

e The development of the plan has been done keeping in view the on-going business needs and the
environment it is operating in.

e The IT Team has been working on the Standard Operating Procedures.

e The Management also ensures the training of all the employees on how to respond in case of any
unforeseen or extra ordinary event.

* Employees are imparted multi-skill training which helps in the continuity of business activities.

e To ensure the safety of employees and assets, fire alarm systems are installed in the premises of all the
offices. Moreover, adequate systems are in place for extinguishing fire.

e The Company has also deployed adequate security staff at Company’s premises to ensure
uninterrupted operations regardless of the political situation and other external factors.

e The Company ensures the backup of all the assets whether physical or virtual; the physical assets are
backed by insurance, whereas back-up of virtual assets and data is created on a routine basis.

e ltis also regularly ensured that Data Recovery processes are operating effectively.

Compliance with the hest practices of code of
corporate governance

The Board of Directors has complied with the requirements for Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019, the listing regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange and the
requirements for Financial Reporting framework of Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance, Review Report by the Company’s
Auditors and Report of the Board’s Audit Committee on adherence to the Code of Corporate Governance are
also included in this Report.
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Role of chairman and the chief executive officer

Chairman:
e To provide leadership to the Board of Directors of the Company.

e Toensure that the Board plays an effective role in setting up the Company’s corporate strategy, business
direction and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs).

e To promote and oversee the highest standards of corporate governance within the Board and the
Company.

e To review performance of the Board.

e To manage and solve conflict, if any, amongst the Board members and to ensure freedom of opinion in
the Board.

Chief Executive Officer:
* To execute and implement the strategies, policies and business plans approved by the Board.

e To achieve the performance targets set by the Board and to ensure communication of the same across
the organization as the standards to be achieved by the Management.

* To maintain an effective communication with the Chairman and the Board and to bring all important
matters to their attention.

* To ensure that all strategic and operational risks are effectively managed to an acceptable level and that
adequate system of internal controls are in place for all major operational and financial areas.

e To encourage and inculcate a culture of highest moral, ethical and professional values in all business
dealings of the Company.

Shares held by sponsors / directors / executives:

Shares held by Sponsors / Directors / Executives are given in shareholding pattern of the Company which is
given later in the report.

Key Quantitative Information

JS Global has employed around 181 people including branches & head office at country level.

Disclosure of total & average number of employees has been made in note 26.1 of the financial statements.
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Term of Reference (TORS) of Board Committees

Attendance of directors in meetings of the Board
Committees (Audit Committee, Human Resource &
Remuneration Committee and Risk management

fraud, corruption and abuse of power and
management's response thereto;

Committee) is given in director’s report. ix ascertaining that the internal control systems
including financial and operational controls,
The terms of reference (TORs) of Audit accounting systems for timely and appropriate
Committee determined by the board shall be as recording of purchases and sales, receipts and
follows: payments, assets and liabilities and the
reporting structure are adequate and effective;
i determination of appropriate measures to
safeguard the company’s assets; X review of the company’s statement on internal
control systems prior to endorsement by the
i review of annual and interim financial Board and internal audit reports;
statements of the company, prior to their
approval by the Board, focusing on,- xi instituting special projects, value for money
studies or other investigations on any matter
a) major judgmental areas; specified by the Board, in consultation with the
b) significant adjustments resulting from the audit; chief executive officer and to consider
C) going concern assumption; (d) any changes in remittance of any matter to the external auditors
accounting policies and practices; or to any other external body;
d) compliance with  applicable  accounting
standards; xii determination of compliance with relevant
e) compliance with these Regulations and other statutory requirements;
statutory and regulatory requirements; and (Q)
all related party transactions; xiii monitoring compliance with these Regulations
and identification of significant violations thereof;
i review of preliminary announcements of results
prior to external communication and publication; ~ xiv review of arrangement for staff and
management to report to audit committee in
iv facilitating the external audit and discussion with confidence, concerns, if any, about actual or
external auditors of major observations arising potential improprieties in financial and other
from interim and final audits and any matter that matters and recommend instituting remedial
the auditors may wish to highlight (in the and mitigating measures;
absence of management, where necessary);
xv recommend to the Board the appointment of
v review of management letter issued by external external auditors, their removal, audit fees, the
auditors and management’s response thereto; provision of any service permissible to be
rendered to the company by the external
vi ensuring coordination between the internal and auditors in addition to audit of its financial
external auditors of the company; statements, measures for redressal and
rectification of non-compliances with the
vii review of the scope and extent of internal audit, Regulations. The Board shall give due
audit plan, reporting framework and procedures consideration to the recommendations of the
and ensuring that the internal audit function has audit committee and where it acts otherwise it
adequate resources and is appropriately placed shall record the reasons thereof;
within the company;
xvi consideration of any other issue or matter as
viii consideration of major findings of internal may be assigned by the Board;
investigations of activities characterized by
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The terms of reference (TORs) of HR &
Remuneration Committee determined by the
board shall be as follows:

Vi

The terms of

recommendation to the Board for consideration
and approval a policy framework for determining
remuneration of directors (both executive and
non-executive directors and members of senior
management). The definiton of senior
management will be determined by the Board
which shall normally include the first layer of
management below the chief executive officer
level;

undertaking, annually, a formal process of
evaluation of performance of the Board as a
whole and its committees either directly or by
engaging external independent consultant and if
S0 appointed, a statement to that effect shall be
made in the directors’ report disclosing therein
name and qualifications of such consultant and
major terms of his / its appointment;

recommending human resource management
policies to the Board,;

recommending to the Board the selection,
evaluation, development, compensation
(including retirement benefits) of chief financial
officer, company secretary and head of internal
audit;

consideration and approval on
recommendations of chief executive officer on
such matters for key management positions
who report directly to chief executive officer or
chief operating officer; and

where human resource and remuneration
consultants are appointed, they shall disclose to
the committee their credentials and as to
whether they have any other connection with the
company.

reference (TORs) of Risk

Management Committee determined by the
board shall be as follows:

Monitoring and review of all material controls
related to trading limits, exposure margins,

Vi

Vil

viii

collateral management, financing products and
compliances activities.

Appropriate extent of disclosure of company's
risk framework and internal control system in
Directors report.

To evaluate and recommend to the Board the
approval of major additions/ deletions in trading
portfolio and changes in investment portfolio in
accordance with the Risk Management
Guidelines specified in SIOP of the Company
and other internal guidelines.

The Committee will review the Company's
adherence to the Policy Statement and, if
needed, make recommendations to the Board
of Directors for changes as a result of new
developments.

The Committee will regularly review Company's
operations based on monthly operating reports
(to include a summary of the Company's net
capital position based on market value)
prepared and submitted by the Chief Financial
Officer or any other person nominated by the
Board of Directors in comparison with the
annual budget.

To review and recommend changes in
Company Policies, to the Board for approval.

To review the status of legal matters of the
Company.

To ensure that the margin requirements are
commensurate with the risks and avoid
concentration

To review and approve the position/trading
limits of clients

To review and approve the list of Margin
Financing Eligible securities.
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Notice Of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty First (21st) Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the members of
JS Global Capital Limited (the "Company" or "JSGCL") will be held on Thursday, April 28th, 2022 at
11:00 a.m. PST via Zoom Video Conference Call at 15th Floor, The Center Building, Plot No. 28, SB-5,
Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi — 74400, Pakistan to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended
December 31st, 2021, together with the Directors' Report and Auditors' Report thereon and
Chairman’s Review Report.

2. To appoint auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration for the year ending December 31st,
2022. The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors have recommended the appointment of
auditors M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants, as auditors of the Company, who
being eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment as auditors of the Company.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS:

1. To consider any other business, if any, with the permission of the Chair.

By the Order of the Board

Karachi Syed Sufyan Ahmed
April 07th, 2022 Company Secretary
Notes:

1.  The Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from April 21st, 2022 to April 28th,
2022 (both days inclusive) for determining shareholders for attending and voting at the Annual
General Meeting.

2. Physical transfers and deposit requests under Central Depository System received at the close of
business on April 20th, 2022 by the Company's Share Registrar i.e. CDC Share Registrar Services
Limited, CDC House, 99 — B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal Karachi will be treated in
time for the purpose of attending and voting at the meeting.

3. Beneficial owners of the shares registered in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited (CDC) and/or their proxies will have to follow the following guidelines as laid down by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan in Circular No.1 of 2000:
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(i)

(i)

(iv)

For Attending the Meeting:

The Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its Notification #
SMD/SE/2(20)/2021/117 dated December 15th, 2021 has instructed to hold the general meeting
physically and virtually to ensure the maximum participation by the members. However, due to
prevailing Pandemic COVID-19 (OMICRON) situation, the Government of Sindh, Health Department
vide its Order No.SOJI/8-1/(04)2020(Stage-4 NPIs) dated January 19, 2022, issued in view of
National Command and Operation Centre's (NCOC) letter dated January 19, 2022, has imposed
certain restrictions, including ban on indoor gatherings. In view of above, the Company has therefore
decided to conduct Annual General Meeting via Zoom Video Link along with designating a physical
venue by following all the COVID related SOPs to facilitate the members who intend to attend the
meeting physically. However, the Company has encouraged members to attend the general meeting
through video conferencing with a view to protect the well-being of its members in view of the threats
posed by the recent wave of COVID-19 (OMICRON).

To attend and participate in the 21st AGM of the Company through video link arrangement, members
are requested to complete identification and verification formalities i.e. provide their names, CNICs
scanned (both sides), folio numbers, cell phone numbers and email addresses on or before April
20th, 2022 by 5:00 p.m. at the following email address i.e. jsgcl.cs @js.com. The video link of meeting
will be sent to the members on their email addresses.

The members can also provide their comments / suggestions for discussion on the agenda items of
the AGM through following means by April 20th, 2022:

WhatsApp SMS Email

0345-2929128 0345 -2929128 jsgcl.cs@js.com

The Company will ensure that comments / suggestions of the members will be read out at the
meeting by the Company Secretary and the responses will be made part of the minutes of the
meeting. Any and all suggestions and comments received from shareholders shall be duly discussed
in the meeting and be recorded appropriately in the minutes. The minutes of the meeting will be
recorded and kept as per requirements.

The Company will follow the best practices and comply with the instructions of the Government and
SECP to ensure protective measures are in place for well-being of its Members.

For Appointing Proxies:

In case of individuals, the account holder and/or sub-account holder whose registration details are
uploaded as per the CDC Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per above requirements.

The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons, whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

Attested copies of the CNIC or the passport of beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with
the proxy form.

The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting. Proxy form
must be received at the Registered Office of the Company located at 17th/18thFloor, The Centre
Building, Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi, duly stamped and signed not less than 48 hours
before the time of the meeting.
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(v) Incase of corporate entity, scanned copies of the Board’s resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be furnished (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the
Company.

4. Shareholders are requested to notify immediately of any change in their addresses to the Company’s
Share Registrar.

5. In terms of the directives of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), the
Computerized National lIdentity Card Numbers (CNIC) of the registered shareholders or the
authorized person, except in the case of minor(s) and corporate shareholders are required to be
mentioned on the dividend warrants and the annual return required to be filed by the Company with
the SECP. Therefore, the shareholders who have not yet provided copies of their CNICs are advised
to provide at earliest the attested copies of their CNICs (if not already provided) directly to the
Company's Share Registrar at the address mentioned above.

6. Interms of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, any dividend payable in cash shall only be paid
through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders.
Accordingly, the shareholders holding physical shares are requested to provide to the Company's
Share Registrar at the address mentioned above, electronic dividend mandate on E-Dividend Form
which is available on website of the Company i.e. www.jsgcl.com. In the case of shares held in CDC,
the same information should be provided to the concerned CDS Participants for updating and
forwarding to the Company in order to make process of payment of cash dividend more efficient.

7. Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at a reduced
rate are requested to submit a valid tax certificate or necessary documentary evidence, as the case
may be.

8. Different rates are prescribed under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2021 for deduction of
withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies. These tax rates are as under:

For filer of income tax rates: 15%
For non-filers of income tax returns: 30%

To enable the Company to make tax deductions of the amount of cash dividend @15% instead of
30%, all shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) provided on
the website of FBR, despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are
entered into the ATL before the date for payment of the cash dividend otherwise tax on their cash
dividend will be deducted @30% instead of 15%.

For any query/problem, the investor may contact the Company and/or the Share Registrar at the
following numbers and email addresses. The contact of Company Secretary is+92 21 111 574 111
(Ext: 3117) and email address is jsgcl.cs@js.com and the contact number of the Share Registrar is
+92 21 111 111 500 and email address is nadeem_ashraf @ cdcsrsl.com.

9. The Shareholders who have joint shareholdings held by filers and non-filers shall be dealt with
separately and in such particular situation, each account holder is to be treated as either a Filer or a
Non-Filer and tax will be deducted according to his shareholding. If the share is not ascertainable,
then each account holder will be assumed to hold equal proportion of shares and the deduction will
be made accordingly. Therefore, in order to avoid deduction of tax at a higher rate, the joint account
holders are requested to provide the below details of their shareholding to the Share Registrar of the
Company.
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10.

11.

12.

Folio /CDC Total

Account No Shares Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder

Name Shareholding Name Shareholding
&CNIC proportion &CNIC proportion

Shareholders who by any reason could not receive their dividends are advised to contact our Share
Registrar to inquire about their unclaimed dividends, if any. In compliance with Section 244 of the
Companies Act, 2017, after having completed the stipulated procedure, all such dividends
outstanding for a period of 3 years or more from the date due shall be deposited to the credit of
Federal Government.

Under Section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017, listed companies are allowed to send the Audited
Financial Statements etc., through electronic mail system (e-mail). The members are hereby
requested to convey their consent via email on a standard request form which is available at the
Company's website i.e. www.jsgcl.com. Please ensure that your email account has sufficient rights
and space available to receive such email which may be greater than 1 MB in size. Members can
request a hard copy of Audited Financial Statements which shall be provided free of cost within seven
days from the date of requisition. Further, it is the responsibility of the member(s) to timely update the
Share Registrar of any change in his (her/its/their) registered email address at the address of
Company's Share Registrar mentioned above.

The Company has placed the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021
along with Auditors and Directors Reports thereon and Chairman's Review Report on its website:
www.jsgcl.com.
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Chairman’s Review Report

Dear Shareholders

| take immense pleasure in presenting you the annual performance of JS Global Capital Limited (“JSGCL” or
“the Company”) for FY2021. Following the pandemic year, FY2021 witnessed revival of economic activity in
Pakistan and many other parts of the world, leading to other challenges such as tackling global logistical
constraints and record breaking commaodity prices.

Being the Chairman of the Board/Company, | once again take pride in sharing the key achievements made
by the Company and maintaining its position as one of the market leader in Investment Banking and Capital
markets. Commitment and efforts from the Board and its committees continued to strive for the best, resulting
in accomplishment of identified milestones throughout the year. This is also evident from the fact that the
overall rating of annual performance evaluation of the board and its Committees during FY2020 given by
Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants hired for this purpose was “Significantly satisfied/
Very good”. During FY2021, the Company in the capacity of Consultant to the issue and Book Runner has
undertaken the single-largest, historical and record setting private sector IPO of Air Link Communication
Limited — a mobile phone assembler and exporter in Pakistan whereby PKR 6.43 billion was raised through
offering 90 million shares to institutional and high net worth individual investors. Air Link’s IPO was
oversubscribed by 1.64 times as over 500 institutional and high net worth individual investors placed bids for
147.65 million shares against an issuance size of 90 million shares, amounting the size of bids to around Rs.
11 billion. Further, the Company also executed foreign investor transactions worth ~US$62mn (~30% market
share) and ~US$64mn (~50% market share) in a single day at the time of MSCI rebalancing in May-2021
and Nov-2021, respectively. These few achievements mentioned out of the many achieved in FY2021 are a
testimony of the company’s excelling strengths on all fronts.

The AA (long term) and A1+ (short term) entity ratings and BMR1 Management rating with stable outlook —
one of the highest for any equity brokerage firm in the country — by PACRA are testament not only to the
Company’s commitment to being an industry leader in operational and structural excellence but to the team’s
hard work in ensuring that the Company continues to be known as a market leader. We continue to work on
increasing the low penetration levels that continue to be a major challenge to the development of Pakistan’s
financial market.

Last, but not the least, strengthening of overall accountability measures should go a long way in bridging the
trust gap between small investors and the markets. | would like to commend the management for their
dedication and thank the stakeholders for their continued support and trust in the Company. | assure you that
the Company is on the trajectory of continuously improving its compliance to all ethical and legal obligations
and setting itself as a leading example in the industry. |, on behalf of the Board and the Management wish
you another year of success, prosperity and health.

Shahab Anwar Khawaja
Chairman

Date: February 18, 2022

Js
//J S Global capital Limited 56




Report Of The Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee are pleased to present their report to the shareholders for the year ended December 31,
2020. We would like to make the following submissions:

COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of four (4) non-executive directors including one Independent Director, who is also the
Chairperson of the Committee. The members of the Audit Committee are qualified professionals and possess enriched
experience of working at the Boards & Senior Management levels of entities operating in various sectors. Further, two members
are qualified as financial literates as per Code of Corporate Governance.

The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

Chief Financial Officer of the Company attends the meeting by invitation, while the Committee meetings are attended by the
External Auditors on requirement basis.

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Committee has concluded its annual review of the conduct and operations of the Company during 2020, and reports that:

The annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 have been prepared on a going concern basis
under requirements of Companies Act 2017, incorporating the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance,
International Financial Reporting Standards and other applicable regulations.

There were no issues in the application of Companies Act 2017, and these financial statements present a true and fair
view of the Company’s state of affairs, results of operations, profits, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company for
the year under review.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied except for the changes, if any, which have been
appropriately disclosed in the financial statements.

The Chairman of Audit Committee, Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have endorsed the financial
statements of the Company, while the Directors’ Report is signed by the Chairman of Audit Committee and the Chief
Executive Officer. They acknowledge their responsibility for true and fair presentation of the Company’s financial condition
and results, compliance with regulations, applicable accounting standards and establishment and maintenance of
internal controls and systems of the Company.

Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. Proper and adequate accounting records have
been maintained by the Company in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017. The financial statements comply with the
requirements of the Fourth Schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 and the external reporting is consistent with
management processes and adequate for shareholder needs.

All Related Party transactions have been reviewed by the Committee prior to approval by the Board.

The Company has issued a “Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations 2019” which has also been reviewed and certified by the External Auditors of the Company.

Understanding and compliance with Company codes and policies has been affirmed by the members of the Board, the
Management and employees of the Company. Equitable treatment of shareholders has also been ensured.

Trading and holdings of Company’s shares (if any) by Directors & executives or their spouses were notified in writing to
the Company Secretary along with the price, number of shares, form of share certificates and nature of transaction which
were notified by the Company Secretary to the Board within the stipulated time. All such holdings have been disclosed in
the Pattern of Shareholding.

Closed periods were duly determined and announced by the Company, precluding the Directors, the Chief Executive and
executives of the Company from dealing in Company shares, prior to each Board meeting involving announcement of
interim / final results, distribution to shareholders or any other business decision, which could materially affect the share
market price of the Company, along with maintenance of confidentiality of all business information.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has developed a sound mechanism for identification of risks and assigning appropriate criticality level and
devising appropriate mitigation measures which are regularly monitored and implemented by the management across all
major functions of the Company.

The Company has devised and implemented an effective internal control framework which also includes an outsourced
independent internal audit function.

The Internal Auditors is responsible for monitoring of compliance, inherent and other risks associated with the internal
controls and other areas of operations of the Company.

The Company’s approach towards risk management has also been disclosed in the relevant portion of the Directors’
Report.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company’s system of internal controls is sound in design and has been continually evaluated for effectiveness and
adequacy.
The Audit Committee has ensured the achievement of operational, compliance, risk management, financial reporting and
control objectives, safeguarding of the assets of the Company and the shareholders’ wealth at all levels within the
Company.
The independent outsourced Internal Audit function has carried out its duties under the charter defined by the Committee.
The Committee has reviewed Internal Audit findings as reported by internal auditors via its reports on quarterly basis in
its meeting, taking appropriate action or bringing the matters to the Board’s attention where required.

Audit Committee has provided proper arrangement for staff of independent outsourced internal audit function and
management to report to Audit Committee in confidence, concerns, if any, about actual or potential improprieties in
financial and other matters. Adequate remedial and mitigating measures are applied, where necessary.
The Head of Internal Audit (Internal audit coordinator) has direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee and
independent outsourced internal audit function has staff with sufficient internal audit acumen and that the function has all
necessary access to Management and the right to seek information and explanations.
Coordination between the External and Internal Auditors was facilitated to ensure efficiency and contribution to the
Company’s objectives, including a reliable financial reporting system and compliance with laws and regulations.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The statutory Auditors of the Company, EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants , have completed their audit assignment
of the “Company’s Financial Statements” and the “Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance” for
the financial year ended December 31, 2020.

The Auditors attended the Audit Committee meeting where their audit report was discussed and external auditor has
discussed the major areas concerning their audit with the members of Audit Committee.

The Auditors do not provide any services other than external audit of the Company. The audit firm has no financial or other
relationship of any kind with the Company except that of External Auditors.

The statutory Auditors of the Company, EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants stand retired and not eligible for
reappointment for FY 2021 due to expiry of five (5) years since appointment. Audit Committee has recommended the
appointment of M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants as auditors of the Company along with its
remuneration to board who recommends the same for members' approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

The Company has issued a very comprehensive Annual Report which besides presentation of the financial statements
and the Directors’ Reports of the Company, also discloses other information much in excess of the regulatory
requirements to offer an in depth understanding about the management style, the policies set in place by the Company,
its performance during the year, and future prospects to various stakeholders of the Company.

The information has been disclosed in the form of ratios, trends, graphs, analysis, explanatory notes and statements etc.,
and the Audit Committee believes that the Annual Report 2020 gives a detailed view of how the Company evolved, its
state of affairs and future prospects.

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee believes that it has carried out responsibilities to the full, in accordance with Terms of Reference
approved by the Board which includes principally the items mentioned above and the actions taken by the Audit
Committee in respect of each of these responsibilities. Evaluation of the Board’s performance, which also included
members of the Audit Committee was carried out separately and is detailed in the Annual Report.
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2, Beaumont Road
Karachi 75530 Pakistan

+92 (21) 35685847, Fax +92 (21) 35685095

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of JS Global Capital Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the
Board of Directors of JS Global Capital Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended 31
December 2021 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the
Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors
of the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance
reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the
Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to
comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the
audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider
whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and
controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their
review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related
party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the
Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether the related
party transactions were undertaken at arm'’s length price or not.

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., a Partnership firm registered in Pakistan and a member firm of the KPMG global organization
of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG international Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee.




KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe
that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's
compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the
Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

e

\C A VA Q \ el —

Date: 22 March 2022 ) KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Karachi

UDIN: CR202110106xZ1bjECM4
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 ("The Regulations”)

Name of Company: JS Global Capital Limited
Year ended: December 31st, 2021
The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:-

1.

3.

The total number of directors are Eight (8) including CEO who is deemed director as per the following:

Gender Number of Directors
Male Seven (7)
Female One (1)

The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Name of Directors
Independent Directors e Mr. Shahab Anwar Khawaja
e Mr. Iftikhar Ahmed Rao
Non -Executive Directors * Mr. Hasan Saeed Akbar

e Syed Ghaus Ahmad
e Mr. Salaal Hasan

Executive Directors e Mr. Muhammad Kamran Nasir
e Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Amanullah
Female Director * Ms. Shireen Raza (Non-Executive Director)

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on any other listed company,
including JS Global Capital Limited.

The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of
the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along
with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company;

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken
by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;
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All meetings of the Board were presided over by Chairman. The Board has Complied with the
requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of
meeting of the Board,;

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance
with the Act and these Regulations;

The Board has arranged Directors’ Training program for the following Directors who have acquired the
prescribed Certification under Regulation 19 during the year ended December 31st, 2021:

Name of Directors:

Mr. Iftikhar Ahmed Rao (Independent Director)
Mr. Hasan Saeed Akbar (Non-Executive Director)
Syed Ghaus Ahmad (Non-Executive Director)
Ms. Shireen Raza (Non-Executive Director)

The CEO, Mr. Muhammad Kamran Nasir and two other Directors, namely, Mr. Shahab Anwar Khawaja
(Independent Director) and Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Amanullah (Executive Director) had already acquired
Certification earlier, which fulffills the requirements of Regulation 19 which required Certification of at least 75%
of the Directors on the Board of the Company by June 30th, 2021.

There is no new appointment of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the year. Further,
the Board has approved appointment of Head of Internal Audit including his remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below.-

10.
11.
of the Board;
12.
a)  Audit Committee
o Mr. Iftikhar Ahmed Rao — Chairman
o Mr. Hasan Saeed Akbar - Member
o Ms. Shireen Raza - Member
o Mr. Salaal Hasan - Member
b) HR and Remuneration Committee
o Mr. Iftikhar Ahmed Rao — Chairman
o Mr. Muhammad Kamran Nasir — Member
o Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Amanullah - Member
o Mr. Hasan Saeed Akbar — Member
. Syed Ghaus Ahmad - Member
c) Nomination Committee

There is no Nomination Committee constituted by the Board as the Board does not consider necessary to
from this Committee considering circumstances of the Company as per Regulation 29 of the Code,
according to which constitution of Nomination Committee does not seem to be mandatory.
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d) Risk Management Committee

Mr. Shahab Anwar Khawaja — Chairman

Mr. Muhammad Kamran Nasir — Member

Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Amanullah - Member
Syed Ghaus Ahmad - Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following,-

a) Audit Committee — Quarterly

b) HR and Remuneration Committee — at least yearly and as and when need arose
c) Risk Management Committee - Quarterly

15. The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to the Holding Company who are considered suitably
qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the
company;

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are
not close relatives (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer,
chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been
complied with.

The explanation as required under these regulations are as follows;

Regulation 6: Currently elected two (2) independent directors have requisite competencies, skills,
knowledge and experience to discharge and execute their duties competently as per laws and regulations
under which hereby fulfill the necessary requirements; not warrant the appointment of a third independent
director.

19. There were no non-compliance with any other requirements.

Shahab Anwar Khawaja Muhammad Kamran Nasir
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Dated: February 18th, 2022
Karachi
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Directors’ Report

We are pleased to present the Annual Report of JS
Global Capital Limited (“the Company”) along with
the audited accounts and auditors’ report for the
year ended December 31, 2021.

The Economy

The pro-active actions by the government & central
bank supported economic activity and led to a
GDP growth of 3.9% during FY21/ The positive
momentum was however somewhat undermined
by a spike in international commodity prices,
followed by higher CPI readings in the later months
of CY21. Average CPI for CY21 clocked in at
9.5%, where a sharp increase was reported in the
last quarter of the year. The State Bank of Pakistan
also moved towards monetary tightening stance
during the same period, taking the Policy Rate up
by 275bps to 9.75% at year end.

On the fiscal front, after FY21’s fiscal deficit of
7.1% of GDP, Pakistan’s fiscal deficit for 1QFY22
was reported at 0.8% of GDP. Moreover, the
primary balance during the quarter turned positive
as it was reported at 0.3% of GDP. The improved
picture on the fiscal front was led by higher tax
collections and controlled expenditures. The FBR
collection for THFY22 touched Rs. 2,915 billion, up
33% YoY, while it also surpassed the target by
Rs282 billion.

On the external front, the Current Account Deficit
(CAD) increased to US$10.3 billion for the
11MCY21 period, as compared to a surplus of
US$874 million during 11MCY20. The pressure on
the current account rose as the country’s import bill
increased by 57% YoY during 11MCY21 to
US$60.3 billion, which dominated the current
account balance. The higher import bill minimize
the impact of 33% YoY growth in exports and 20%
YoY growth in remittances recorded during the
same period. However, on account of SDR
allocation of US$2.7 billion, Saudi deposits of
US$3 billion and other multilateral/bilateral loans,
the country’s foreign exchange reserves increased
by US$3.4 billion to US$23.9 billion as at CY21
end. During the same period, PKR depreciated
against the US$ by 9.5%.

Equity Capital Markets

After a positive return of more than 8% marked in
1HCY21 the direction of KSE100 Index turned
south, dominated by concerns over spike in
international commodity prices, the country’s
ballooning  Current Account Deficit and
developments over the geo-political front.
Pakistan’s equity markets were also re-classified
by MSCI from Emerging Markets to Frontier
Markets during the second half of CY21. The
benchmark Index closed the CY21 with minimal
gains of 1.9%, closing at 44,596 levels. The
participation in equity markets remained robust
during CY21 as daily traded volumes registered a
jump of 44% YoY, and averaged 474 million
shares. Moreover, value traded averaged at
US$105 million, which was also 39% higher YoY
as compared to the average in CY20.

Sectors pertaining to the energy chain were
among key underperformers as the Oil & Gas
Marketing Companies (-18% YoY), Oil & Gas
Exploration Companies (-8% YoY) and Power
Generation & Distribution (-6% YoY) closed in the
red zone. Other heavy-weights such as Fertilizers
(+1.5% YoY), Commercial Banks (+2% YoY) and
Technology & Communication sector (+55% YoY)
were among the positive contributors to the Index
during CY21. Foreign Investors were once again
net seller with a cumulative net outflow of US$359
million.

Foreign Exchange Market

The weakness in Rupee of 9.5% during the year
emerged from a rising trade gap as imports from
expansionary policies continued to increase on
account of Temporary Economic Refinance
Facility (TERF) related investments, international
commodity prices and low interest rates induced
rising demand of automobiles alongside consumer
durables. The country’s total foreign exchange
reserves closed at US$25.9bn as at the end of the
preceding quarter, decreased to US$ 24.018bn as
at 4QCY21. Moreover, swap prices surged during
the 4Q of the calendar year due to rise in Policy
Rate by SBP.
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Money Market

Average CPI for CY21 clocked in at 9.5%, where a
sharp increase was reported in the last quarter of
the year. As a result, The State Bank of Pakistan
moved towards a restrictive monetary stance
during the same period, taking the Policy Rate up
by 275bps to 9.75% by the end of the year. Mone-
tary policy committee also increased its frequency
of meetings from 6 to 8 times per year.

Cut-off yields for T-bills, at the end of Dec-2021,
were 10.60% for 3M, 11.45% for 6M and 11.51%
for the 12M tenor. Total participation in T-Bills
remained high during the period. While the
economic situation improved as a result of vacci-
nation drives, participation in PIBs also persistently
increased, due to the liquidity provided by SBP
through the 63day OMO injection pushing yields
downwards. At the last auction of CY21, the cut-off
yields for 3Y, 5Y and 10Y PIBs stood at 11.50%,
11.57% and 11.76%, respectively. In addition, less
activity was witnessed in floating rate PIBs during
the period.

Moreover, for GOP ljarah Sukuk (FRR), the cut-off
yield was 11.40% whereas in auction for GOP
ljarah Sukuk (VRR) the cut-off yield was 8.6955%
for the 5-year maturity instrument. Introduction of
GoP ljarah Sukuks with semi-annual and quarterly
coupons to maintain Islamic liquidity was the key
highlight for CY21.

Overview of Financial Performance

The summarized results are set out below:

Profit before tax
Profit after tax
Earnings per share

Monetary impacts of significant P&L items on the
Company’s bottom-line are highlighted as under:

The Company earned operating revenue amount-
ing to PKR 1,061 million relative to PKR 613
million in the corresponding period prior year, thus

Commodities Market

During the year, the commodities market was also
impacted by the pandemic internationally. In the
last month of Dec-2021, market traded with very
thin volumes due to Christmas and New Year
holidays. Gold trading activity at PMEX during
2021 was range bound between USD1747/0z to
USD1881/0z whereas during corresponding
period of 2020 gold traded between USD1788/0z
to USD1975/0z. On the other hand, crude oil
traded in a range of USD 62.43/bbl to USD 85.4/b-
bl during 2021 as against USD 34.9/bbl to USD
49.3/bbl.

Principal activities

The Company is a Trading Right Entitlement
Certificate (TREC) holder of Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited (PSX) and member of Pakistan
Mercantile Exchange Limited (PMEX). The princi-
pal activities of the Company are share brokerage,
money market brokerage, forex brokerage, com-
modity brokerage, advisory, underwriting, book
running and consultancy services. Other activities
include investment in a mix of listed and unlisted
equity and debt securities and reverse repurchase
transactions.

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Rupees
535,335,345 289,613,260
410,525,620 206,954,372
14.27 6.77

clocking the increase of 73%.

On the cost front, the Company incurred PKR 738
million (up by 32% YoY) for the said year in
respect of administrative and operating expenses.
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The increase in profitability is directly attributable to
the significantly increased volumes at the bourse
during the period under consideration as well as
successful execution of IPO of Airlink Communica-
tion Limited in which Company acted as Book
Runner along with Consultant to the issue. These
were market related factors whereas the Company
was once again able to maintain its overall market
share despite all challenges. Going forward, as the
volumes at the bourse improves; the Company is
poised to capitalize on the back of its growing

Appropriation of Profits

market share.

Moreover, the Company is focused on maintaining
its growth momentum in the long run. The man-
agement is acutely monitoring its resources to reap
the maximum benefits for its shareholders. This
involves optimizing revenue generation from
treasury management, core brokerage and fee
based operations whilst at the same time rational-
izing our cost base.

Profit for the year ended, along with distributable profit at year-end, has been appropriated as follows:

Un-appropriated profit brought forward

Profit after tax
Distribution of profits through buy back of shares
Interim cash dividend for the period ended June 30, 2021
Interim cash dividend for the period ended
November 30, 2021

Un-appropriated profit carried forward
Other Comprehensive Income

Un realized gain on revaluation of investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income - net

Year ended Year ended
December 31,2021 December 31, 2020
----------------- Rupees ---=======mmemnmn
319,321,963 112,367,591
410,525,620 206,954,372
(215,579,210) -
(274,772,970) -
(137,386,485) -
102,108,918 319,321,963
9,388,710 11,441,759

The Board of Directors of the Company has
recommended and approved interim cash
dividend of Rs. 10 per share for the period ended
June 30, 2021 and Rs. 5 per share for the period
ended November 30, 2021 respectively which
were paid to shareholders entitled to receive the
dividend within statutory timeline.

Corporate Governance and Financial Reporting
Framework

The Directors confirm compliance for the following
matters:

- The financial statements, prepared by the
management of the Company, present its
state of affairs fairly, the result of its opera-
tions, cash flows and changes in equity.

e Proper books of account of the Company
have been maintained.

e Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are
based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
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* International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan have been
followed in preparation of financial statements
and any departures therefrom has been
adequately disclosed and explained.

e The system of internal control is sound in
design and has been effectively implemented
and monitored.

e There are no significant doubts upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

e The Company has not defaulted in payment of
any debt liability during the year.

* Reasons for significant deviation from the last
year's operating results have been explained

in the relevant section of the Directors’ Report.

e There has been no material departure from
the best practices of Corporate Governance,
as detailed in the listing regulations.

e Key operating and financial data of last six
years has been given in annual report.

e Information about outstanding taxes, duties,
levies and charges, if any, is given in notes to
the accounts.

e The Company operates an approved Contrib-
utory Provident Fund for its eligible employ-
ees. Value of investments as per un-audited
financial statements for the year ended June
30, 2021 amounts to approximately PKR 123
million (June 30, 2020: PKR 93 million).

e Material changes and commitments (if any)
affecting the financial position of the Company
that have occurred between the balance sheet
date and the date of the Directors’ Report is
appropriately disclosed in accounts.

The Board

The Board comprises of two independent direc-
tors, four non-executive directors, one executive
director and the CEO who is deemed director. The
Board comprises of all male members except one

female member. The Board includes a mix of
Directors with the right expertise and necessary
experience required to fulfill their essential over-
sight roles. The Board values diversity of business
skills and experience as the Directors with diverse
skill set, capabilities and experience gained from
different geographic and cultural background are
critical in today’s competitive business environ-
ment.

The positions of the Chairman and CEO are sepa-
rate in line with the Code and best governance
practices.

The Board of Directors of the Company approved
the formal policy and transparent procedures for
fixing remuneration of its directors. All directors
excluding directors currently employed in any
entity of JS Group receive fixed fee for attending
each meeting of the Board and its committees
along with travelling, conveyance and accommo-
dation charges at actual. The purpose is to provide
fixed remuneration to reflect the scale and com-
plexity of both the business and the role, and to be
competitive with the external market. No benefits
like retirement, pension, gratuity, provident fund or
insurance shall be available for any Non-Executive
directors. Non-Executive directors cannot receive
any rewards under any incentive or performance
based remuneration plans, and personal loans or
guarantees shall not be granted to them by the
Company.

The aggregate remuneration including certain
benefits to the CEO, Directors and Executives of
the Company is disclosed in financial statements.

The annual formal process of evaluation of perfor-
mance of the Board as a whole along with its com-
mittees and directors for FY2020 is being
performed by engaging external independent firm -
Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered
Accountants at a fee agreed with the institute.

The Board has three subcommittees comprising of
Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee
and Human Resource & Remuneration Commit-
tee, which assist the Board in the performance of
its functions during the period under consideration.
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Board Meetings and Attendance

During FY21, the Board of directors held 6 meetings. The attendance record of the directors is as follows:

S.No | Name of Director Eligibility Meetings
attended

Mr. Shahab Anwar Khawaja 6

Mr. Muhammad Kamran Nasir (CEQO)

Mr. Iftikhar Ahmed Rao

Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Amanullah

Mr. Hasan Saeed Akbar

Syed Ghaus Ahmed

Ms. Shireen Raza

Mr. Salaal Hasan
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Mr. Khusro Igbal Mumtaz

The Board Audit Committee

During FY21, the Board Audit Committee held 4 meetings. The attendance record of the directors is as
follows:

S.no Name of Director Eligibility Meetings
attended

1 Mr. Shahab Anwar Khawaja 3 3

2 Mr. Iftikhar Ahmed Rao 1 1

3 Mr. Hasan Saeed Akbar 3 2

4 Ms. Shireen Raza 4 3

5 Mr. Salaal Hasan 1 1

6 Mr. Khusro Igbal Mumtaz 2 2

The Board Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

During FY21, the Board Human Resource & Remuneration Committee held 4 meetings. The attendance
record of the directors is as follows:
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S.no | Name of Director Eligibility Meetings
attended
1 Mr. Iftikhar Ahmed Rao 4 4
2 Mr. Muhammad Kamran Nasir 4 4
3 Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Amanullah 4 4
4 Mr. Hasan Saeed Akbar 3 2
5 | Syed Ghau&hmed 1 1
6 Mr. Khusro Igbal Mumtaz 2 2

The Board Risk Management Committee

During FY21, the Board Risk Management Committee held 4 meetings. The attendance record of the

directors is as follows:

S.no Name of Director Eligibility Meetings
attended

1 Mr. Shahab Anwar Khawaja 1 1

2 Mr. Muhammad Kamran Nasir 4 4

Mr. Muhammad Yousuf Amanullah

Syed Ghaus Ahmed

Mr. Khusro Igbal Mumtaz

Adequacy of Internal Financial Control

The Board of Directors has established a system of
sound internal financial controls, for achieving
effectiveness and efficiency in its operations, reliable
financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. The outsourced Internal Audit
function of the Company to the parent company
regularly monitors implementation of financial
controls whereas the Audit Committee reviews the
effectiveness of the internal control framework and
financial statements on a quarterly basis.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Statement of Corporate & Social Responsibility is
disclosed in relevant section of Annual Report.

Financial
Risks and

Management Discussion of
Responsibility and Significant
Uncertainty

The Company’s management is responsible for
preparing the financial statements and related notes
contained in the Annual Report. The Board Audit
Committee (‘BAC’) monitors and supervises the
functions of the outsourced Internal Audit
Department and assists the Board in overseeing
internal control and monitoring and managing risks,
(including but not limited to credit risk, liquidity risk,
market risk, operational risk, legal/regulatory risk
and reputational risk among others) that results from
operating in the capital market industry. Internal
Audit adopts a risk-based approach for planning and
conducting business process audits, which are very
much consistent with the established Framework.
The Committee also reviews the performance of the
Company’s external auditors and recommends their
appointment and the terms of their appointment.

ANNUAL REPORT
n 2021 //JS



BAC operates in accordance with the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 issued by the Securities
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Terms
of reference as approved by the Board sets out the
scope of the Committee. The Committee comprises
of three non-executive directors and the Chairman
who is an independent director. The Chairman of the
BAC satisfies the requirement of having at least one
financial literate member, being a member of a
recognized body of professional accountants. The
Internal Audit function is outsourced to the parent
company, who reports directly to the Chairman of
the BAC, and the Chief Financial Officer is invited to
attend the meetings. During the year, the Committee
held four meetings. The external auditors were also
in attendance to discuss specific issues. The
financial statements of the company were reviewed
by the BAC before approval by the Board.

Auditors

The Auditors M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants is eligible for reappointment
for FY 2022. BAC has recommended the
re-appointment of M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants as auditors of the Company
along with its remuneration to board who
recommends the same for members' approval at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.’

Pattern of Shareholding

Major shareholder of JS Global Capital Limited is JS
Bank Limited who holds 92.90% shares. Other
shareholders include local institutions and the
general public.

A statement of the general pattern of shareholding
along with pattern of shareholding of certain classes
of shareholders whose disclosure is required under
the regulatory framework and the statement of
purchase and sale of shares, if any, by Directors,
Executives and their spouses including minor
children during the year ended December 31, 2021
is presented later in annual report.

Credit Rating and Broker Management Rating

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) has

maintained the Company’s long term and short-term
ratings at AA (Double A) and A1+ (A-One Plus)
respectively, for FY21. These ratings reflect the
Company’s sound financial position resulting from a
robust capital structure and denotes a very low
expectation of credit risk and very strong capacity for
timely payments of financial commitments. This
capacity is not significantly vulnerable to foreseeable
events

During the FY21, PACRA conducted the Broker
Management (BM) Rating and assigned BMR1 with
a ‘Stable’ outlook. The rating derives comfort from
the Company’s policy prohibiting proprietary trading
stocks, thus limiting the market risk and liquidity risk.
The rating also reflects Strong regulatory
compliance, control environment, and financial
management; governance and risk management
frameworks are highly effective; HR, IT, and
customer services are highly proactive.

Future Outlook

With the strength that our balance sheet and
reserves have to offer and our constant desire to
achieve steady and tangible growth, we will continue
to strengthen and improve on our services as well as
create new financial products and services. In spite
of the numerous challenges being faced by the
country and the economy, we are confident that we
will maintain our growth momentum in the long run
and continue to build shareholders value as we have
always in the past.

We plan on maintaining our focus on institutional
building by continuously strengthening our core
business units, increasing market share in all
domains and constantly remain in search of
innovative financial products and services.
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CORPORAT

SOCIAL

RESPONSIBILIT]

JS Global Capital Limited (JSGCL) being a responsible organization strives to encourage Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) that nourishes economic growth, social progress and environmental protection in
Pakistan.

JSGCL carries out maj
each year to support i
charitable organizatio
technology and provi
professional training, emot
standards of the people of
families for their livelihood.

t activities in partnership with Future Trust by donating certain amount
ure Trust (the Trust) was founded in 2015. The Trust is a non-profit
S Group for the promotion, advancement and encouragement of
rvices in the field of healthcare, education, career counseling,
eing and general improvement of socio economic conditions and living
n. The Trust also provides monthly sustenance to various penurious
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Analysis of Financial Statements

FOR THE CURRENT AND LAST SIXYEARS

Key Performance Indicators 2021 2020 2019 2017
PROFITABILITY RATIOS
Profit before tax ratio % 40.78% 33.21% 14.93% 13.04% 22.27% 31.94%
Return on Equity % 17.68% 8.84% 1.95% 0.98% 3.32% 6.29%
Return on Asset % 6.85% 4.36% 1.06% 0.60% 2.08% 4.28%
Return on Capital Employed % 0.02% 12.25% 5.98% 4.06% 9.72% 9.38%
Net Profit Margin % 31.28% 23.73% 6.58% 3.38% 9.60% 22.85%
EBIT Margin % 42.97% 35.15% 20.47% 0.04% 0.02% 33.79%
LIQUIDITY RATIOS
Current Ratio Times 1.41 1.42 2.01 1.93 3.00 2.20
Cash to Current Liabilities Times 0.34 0.56 0.74 0.70 1.45 0.55
Operating Cash Flow Ratio Times 0.17 0.13 0.13 0.05 0.20 0.14
Profitability Ratios Profitability Ratios

35.15%
33.79%

4.28%

23.73% 22.85%

6.29%

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
@mgmmm Net Profit Margin == EBIT Margin emgums Return on Equity el Return on Asset

PROFITABILITY RATIOS

The company continued its growth trajectory and recorded excellent results for the year 2021 - with an all-around
growth. The profitability ratios have seen an upward trend wherein the company made a net profit of Rs. 410.53
million compared to a net profit of Rs. 206.95 million in the previous year. The increase in profitability is mainly
attributed to the significantly higher volumes at the bourse during the period, daily weighted average traded volumes
reached 474 million shares, up by 44% on a YoY basis. The company continued to maintain its market share by
ensuring that customers receive high-quality services.

Key Performance Indicators
INVESTMENT/MARKET RATIOS

Earning per Share Rs. 14.94 6.77 1.55 0.67 2.25 4.50
Price Earnings Ratio % 5.70 12.26 47.93 48.18 18.66 12.00
Price to Book Ratio % 1.07 1.04 1.01 0.47 0.61 0.80
Market Value per Share (Year End) Rs. 85.15 83.00 74.11 32.50 42.00 54.00
Market Value per Share (Highest) Rs. 131.10 83.00 123.99 48.00 86.17 58.24
Market Value per Share (Lowest) Rs. 63.50 50.00 24.26 25.01 37.00 37.81
Breakup Value/Book Value per Share Rs. 79.93 80.06 73.09 68.63 68.45 67.24
No. of Shares (million) - based on par value of 10 Nos. 27,477,297 30,557,000 30,557,000 38,007,000 38,007,000 38,007,000
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SHARE PRICE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

Share price in the stock market moves due to various factors such as company performance, general market senti-
ment, economic events, and interest rates, etc. Being a responsible and law-compliant company, JS Global Capital
Limited circulates price-sensitive information to stock exchange in accordance with the requirements of listing regu-
lations in a timely manner. During the year 2021, the Company's share price touched the peak of Rs. 131.10, while
the lowest recorded price was Rs. 63.50 and the closing price was Rs. 85.15 at the end of the year.

SHARE PRICE HISTORY
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Key Performance Indicators 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Debt to Equity Ratio (as per Book Value) % 2.00 1.20 0.83 0.86 0.45 0.74
Debt to Equity Ratio (as per Market Value) % 1.03 0.63 0.44 0.64 0.30 0.45
Interest Coverage Ratio Times (19.70) 18.13 3.70 14.89 4.65 386.16
ACTIVITY/TURNOVER RATIOS

Total Assets Turnover Ratio Times 0.07 0.04 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.04
Fixed Assets Turnover Times 0.20 0.13 0.06 0.08 0.54 1.13
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company has maintained the sizeable market share with its established brand name, sound operating
platform, strong sponsor profile and robust capital structure; showcasing well-managed liquidity and improved
efficiency ratios. All this continues to position your Company as the top-tier brokerage house in the financial
services industry. During the year, a substantial boom in traded volumes was witnessed at the bourse, the core
revenue of the Company remained robust. The Company’s investment portfolio is compliant to its investment
policy and is dominated by bank placements and equity spread transactions which provide stable stream of
income. The topline of the Company depicts diversified revenue stream supplemented by consultancy income,
Ready Buy and Future Sell trade ‘RBFS’, margin financing and investment return on financial assets.

Ownership Structure:

JS Bank Limited (JSBL) is the major shareholder of the company, holding ~92.09% stake, JS Bank is the subsidi-
ary of Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Limited (JSCL). The remaining stake lies with the general public and other market
participants as at December 31, 2021.

Business Acumen:

JS Bank is a medium-sized commercial bank, operating with 281 branches in Pakistan and one branch in
Bahrain. JS Bank is one of the fastest growing Bank in Pakistan, with both domestic and international presence.
The Bank is a leader in the digital financial services, SME & consumer loans space. JS Bank has been recog-
nized on multiple international and national forums including the prestigious AsiaMoney, Asian Banking and
Finance, DIGI and Pakistan Banking Awards. The Bank is part of JS Group, one of Pakistan’s most diversified and
progressive financial services groups.

JSCL is the holding company of JSBL, owning 75.02% of the ordinary shares. JSCL is also the holding company
for JS Group's business interest in banking, insurance, investment services, media, textile and port terminal oper-
ations.

Financial:

With a strong capital structure, JS Bank's equity stood at ~PKR 22,024 million at end Dec'21. JS Bank has a
long-term rating of AA- and short-term rating of A1+.
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2, Beaumont Road
Karachi 75530 Pakistan

+92 (21) 35685847, Fax +92 (21) 35685095

INDEPENDENT AUDITCR’S REPORT
To the members of JS Global Capital Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of JS Global Capital Limited (“the
Company"”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, inciuding a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
nacessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinicn and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement
of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of
cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2017 [XIX of 2017}, in the manner so required and respectively give
a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2021 and
of the profit, other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {ISAs)
as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professicnal
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the
Code} and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for cur opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Following are the Key audit matters:

S.

No.

Key audit matters

Revenue recognition

Refer notes 3.5 and 24 to the
financial statements relating to
revenue recognition.

The Company generates revenue
from brokerage services as wall
as Advisory and related services.
Brokerage represent 83% while
corporate finance and related
services represents 17% of the
total revenue.

We identified revenue
recognition as key audit matter as
it is one of the key performance
indicators of the Company and
because of the potential risk that
revenue transactions may not
been recognized in the
appropriate period.

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Qur procedures armong others, included:

3

We obtained an understanding of,
assessed and tested the design and
operating effectiveness of key internal
controls over the recording of revenue;

We assessed the appropriateness of the
Company's accounting policies for
revenue recognition and compliance of
those policies with appiicable accounting
standards;

We identified the automated controls and
the corresponding key IT systems that
support the processes;

We assessed the IT control environment,
reviewed the IT governance framewaork
and tested the General IT controls of the
key IT application that support the
revenue recognition and reporting to
evaluate whether the system dependent
controls and informatien could be relied
on throughout the period. Our testing of
General IT controls covered access
management, change management and
IT operations;

We have tested the identified automated
application controls, which are critical to
the revenue recognition process. Cur
testing procedures included the testing of
system logics, automated calculations
and validations, testing of system
generated information, system
configuration;

We checked invoices and related
documents, on a sample basis for
selected revenue transactions recorded
during the current year to assess whether
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«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determineg those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinions:

al proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

bl the staternent of financial position, the statement of profit cr loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of
cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with
the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of
account;

¢} investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpese of the Company’s business;

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of
1980}, was deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund
established under section 7 of that Ordinance; and

e) the Company was in compliance with the requirements of section 78 of the
Securities Act, 2015 and section 62 of the Futures Act, 2018, and the relevant
requirements of the Securities Brokers (Licensing and Operations} Regulations,
2016 as at the date on which the statement of financial position was prepared.
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S. Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our
No. audit

the related revenue was recognized in
accordance with the requirernent of
applicable accounting standard; and

*  We compared, on a sample basis,
specific revenue transactions recorded
before and after the reporting date with
underlying documentation to assess
whether revenue has been recognized in
the appropriate accounting period.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The cther information comprises
the informaticn included in the Annuat Report, but does not inciude the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibllity is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or cur knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to repert in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such
internal contro! as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
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management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease cperations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

s |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatemant of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal centrol relevant to the audit in order 10 design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. [f we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December
2020 were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmeodified opinion on those
financial statements on 03 April 2021,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Muhammad Taufig.

\<s}\'\‘."\§ r\_f’\ fm Gt

Date: 77 MAR 7077 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi

UDIN: AR202110106V5GQHzPMA
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves
Authorised capital:
150,000,000
(December 31, 2020:
150,000,000) ordinary
shares of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and
paid-up share capital

Share premium

Surplus on re-measurement of equity
securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Unappropriated profit

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Long-term financing - secured
Lease liability

Deferred Liability

Current liabilities
Current portion of deferred liability
Creditors, accrued expenses
and other liabilities
Commercial Paper
Accrued profit
Unclaimed dividend
Current maturity of long-term financing
Current maturity of lease liability

Total equity and liabilities

Contingencies and
commitments

Note

(]

10

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000

274,772,970
1,810,104,900

9,388,710
102,108,918

305,570,000
1,810,104,900

11,441,759
319,321,963

2,196,375,498

2,446,438,622

552,135,000 37,270,010
7,602,136 16,644,533

- 1,839,560
559,737,136 55,754,103
1,897,534 4,669,470

2,724,571,721

2,802,411,072

953,670,325 -
6,328,952
3,361,843 3,361,843
135,314,633 69,585,524
9,274,266 8,510,261
3,834,419,274 2,888,538,170

6,590,531,908

5,390,730,895

Director

Cheif Executive Officer

Cheif FInanacial Officer
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Investment property
Intangible assets

Long term investments

Long term loans, advances

and deposits
Deferred taxation - net

Current assets

Short term investments

Trade debts

Receivable against
margin finance

Loans and advances

Short-term deposits and
prepayments

Interest and mark-up
accrued

Other receivables

Advance tax

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

Note

11
12
13
14

15
16

17

18

19

20

21
22

23

2021 2020
------------- (Rupees) ============

857,694,424 895,577,307
123,321,956 126,504,547
5,000,000 5,000,015
62,337,622 112,175,298
31,105,006 32,488,821
112,542,761 114,765,637

1,192,001,769

1,286,511,625

1,392,509,008
1,537,968,534

453,311,520
30,295,071

619,816,280

13,953,661
7,494,026
56,313,277
1,286,868,762

237,120,103
1,097,296,646

419,521,592
21,427,280

569,432,251

6,373,618
14,585,585
116,918,109
1,621,544,086

5,398,530,139

4,104,219,270

6,590,531,908

5,390,730,895

Director

Cheif Executive Officer

Cheif FInanacial Officer
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Operating revenue
Capital gain on sale of investments - net

Unrealised gain / (loss) on re-measurement

of investments at fair value through profit or loss - net

Unrealised gain / (loss) on re-measurement

of derivatives at fair value through profit or loss - net

Dividend income

Margin finance income

Administrative and operating expenses

Other operating income - net

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund
Finance cost
Profit before taxation

Taxation - current
- prior year
- deferred

Profit after taxation

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

Note

24

25

17.1&17.2

26

27

28

29

30

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2021 2020
------------- (Rupees) ----=--------
1,060,765,115 613,336,946
43,668,435 50,810,298
1,504,731 12,981,099
(3,428,653) (12,329,287)
6,353,229 15,167,445
57,838,521 47,442,369
1,166,701,378 727,408,870

(737,686,049)  (559,727,761)
429,015,329 167,681,109
145,878,448 144,753,358
574,893,777 312,434,467
(10,925,211) (5,910,475)
(28,633,221) (16,910,732)
535,335,345 289,613,260

(151,949,195) (92,222,774)

28,040,695 16,192,920
(901,225) (6,629,034)

(124,809,725) (82,658,888)

410,525,620 206,954,372
14.27 6.77

Director

Cheif Executive Officer

Cheif FIlnanacial Officer
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified
to statement of profit or loss subsequently

Surplus / (deficit) re-measurement of investments at
fair value through OCI during the year - equity securities
Less: Related tax

Items that may be reclassified
to statement of profit or loss subsequently

Surplus / (deficit) re-measurement of investments at

fair value through OCI during the year - debt securities
Less: Related tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2021 2020
------------- (Rupees) -===-====----
410,525,620 206,954,372
(2,357,160) 5,154,910
96,300 (201,116)
(2,260,860) 4,953,794
244,484 1,150,522
(36,673) (172,578)
207,811 977,944
408,472,571 212,886,110

Director Cheif Executive Officer

Cheif FInanacial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Reserves
Surplus on re-
measurement of
equity securities
Issued, at fair value
subscribed through other
and paid-up comprehensive Unappropriated
share capital Share premium income profit Sub-total Total
(Rupees)
Balance as at January 01, 2020 305,570,000 1,810,104,900 5,510,021 112,367,591 1,927,982,512  2,233,552,512
Total comprehensive
income for the year
Profit for the year - - - 206,954,372 206,954,372 206,954,372
Other comprehensive
income / (loss) - net of tax - - 5,931,738 - 5,931,738 5,931,738
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 5,931,738 206,954,372 212,886,110 212,886,110
Balance as at December 31, 2020 305,570,000  1,810,104,900 11,441,759 319,321,963 2,140,868,622  2,446,438,622
Balance as at January 01, 2021 305,570,000 1,810,104,900 11,441,759 319,321,963 2,140,868,622 2,446,438,622
Total comprehensive
income for the year
Profit for the year - - - 410,525,620 410,525,620 410,525,620
Other comprehensive
income - net of tax - - (2,053,049) - (2,053,049) (2,053,049)
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - (2,053,049) 410,525,620 408,472,571 408,472,571
Transactions with owners
Buy back of 3,079,703 shares
having face value of Rs.10 each
at a price of Rs.80 each (30,797,030) - - - - (30,797,030)
Amount paid in excess of face
value of 3,079,703 shares - - - (215,579,210) (215,579,210)  (215,579,210)
Interim dividend for the financial year 2021
@ Rs. 10/- per share - - - (274,772,970) (274,772,970)  (274,772,970)
Interim dividend for the financial year 2021
@ Rs. 5/- per share - - - (137,386,485) (137,386,485)  (137,386,485)
Balance as at December 31, 2021 274,772,970 1,810,104,900 9,388,710 102,108,918 1,921,602,528 2,196,375,498
The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Director Cheif Executive Officer Cheif FInanacial Officer
S & G
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2021 2020
Note =m=mmnm-mem- (RUpees) ------n-nmmm
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 535,335,345 289,613,260
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of operating assets expense 111 61,954,488 50,087,818
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 11.2 8,152,165 26,894,521
Depreciation of investment property 12 3,182,591 799,103
Gain on sale of operating assets 1111 (2,263) (3,858,414)
Gain on modification of lease agreement - (19,797,365)
Amortisation of intangible assets 13.2 15 2,288
Unrealised gain on remeasurement of investments
at fair value through profit or loss - net (1,504,731) (12,981,099)
Unrealised gain / (loss) on re-measurement
of derivatives at fair value through profit or loss - net 3,428,653 12,329,287
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 10,925,211 5,910,475
Finance cost 28 28,633,221 16,910,732
114,769,350 76,297,346
Cash generated from operating activities
before working capital changes 650,104,695 365,910,606
(Increase) / Decrease in current assets
Trade debts (440,671,888) (581,586,888)
Receivable against margin finance (33,789,928) (104,046,831)
Loans and advances (8,867,791) (3,459,284)
Short-term deposits and prepayments (50,384,029) (16,556,170)
Interest and mark-up accrued (7,580,043) 8,579,505
Other receivables 7,091,559 (2,314,808)
(534,202,120) (699,384,476)
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Creditors, accrued expenses and other liabilities (234,029,003) 1,198,400,260
Cash generated from operations (118,126,428) 864,926,390
Finance cost paid (9,357,178) (5,713,944)
Taxes paid (62,402,443) (60,885,558)
Net cash generated / (used in) from operating activities (189,886,049) 798,326,888
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment 11.1 (32,236,507) (662,565,563)
Purchase of investment property 12 - (127,303,650)
Proceeds from disposal of operating assets 11.11 15,000 3,869,473
Long term loans, advances and deposits 1,383,815 (10,219)
Long term investments - net 47,725,000 20,252,889
Short term investments - net (1,157,312,827) 294,392,950
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (1,140,425,519) (471,364,120)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lease rentals paid (11,829,533) (17,261,595)
Deferred Liabilities 4,611,496 1,929,643
Proceeds from commmercial paper 943,409,391 -
Proceeds from long term loan 630,885,000 106,855,533
Repayment of long term financing (50,290,901)
Dividend paid (274,772,970) -
Payment of buy back of shares (246,376,240) -
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 995,636,243 91,523,581
Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year (334,675,324) 418,486,350
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,621,544,086 1,203,057,736
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 23 1,286,868,762 1,621,544,086
The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Director Cheif Executive Officer Cheif FInanacial Officer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

JS Global Capital Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a private limited company on June 28, 2000
under repealed Companies Ordinance,1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). However, the Company commenced
its operations in May 2003 and name of the Company was changed from JSCL Direct (Private) Limited to
Jahangir Siddiqui Capital Markets (Private) Limited. Subsequently, the Company was converted into a public
unquoted company and the holding company Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Limited. (JSCL) offered its 25%
shareholding to the general public for subscription in December 2004 and the Company obtained listing on
Karachi Stock Exchange Limited and Islamabad Stock Exchange Limited on February 07, 2005. During 2006-
07, the Company issued 10,009,700 shares to Global Investment House K.S.C.C Kuwait, (‘Global'). The shares
were issued to Global without offering right shares on the basis of a special resolution passed on July 11, 2006.
The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide its letter no. EMD/CI/49/2006-458 dated July 19,
2006 gave its in-principle approval to the scheme.

During the year 2012, JS Bank Limited (the Parent Company), a subsidiary of JSCL, acquired 25,525,169
shares of the Company from JSCL and other shareholders against issuance of 185,321,537 shares in lieu
thereof. As a result, the principal ownership of the Company was transferred to the Parent Company. Presently,
the Company is subsidiary of JS Bank Limited, which is a subsidiary of JSCL, the ultimate parent of the
Company.

During the year 2019, the Company announced public announcement of buy back for purchase of its own
shares up to maximum of 7,450,000 shares through tender offer for the purpose of cancellation. The payment
for accepted shares was made on October 01, 2019. The unaccepted shares were subsequently returned to
unsuccessful shareholders and accepted shares were subsequently cancelled on October 02, 2019.

During the year, the Company announced public announcement of buy back for purchase of its own shares up
to maximum of 3,991,525 shares through tender offer out of which 3,079,703 shares were purchased for the
purpose of cancellation. The payment for accepted shares was made on June 04, 2021. The accepted shares
were subsequently cancelled on June, 10 2021.

The Company is a Trading Right Entittement Certificate (TREC) holder of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
(PSX) and member of Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited (PMEX). The principal activities of the Company
are share brokerage, money market brokerage, forex brokerage, commodity brokerage, advisory, underwriting,
book running and consultancy services. Other activities include investment in a mix of listed and unlisted equity
and debt securities and reverse repurchase transactions. The registered office of the Company is located at
17th Floor, The Centre, Plot No. 28, SB-5, Abdullah Haroon Road, Saddar, Karachi, Pakistan. The Company
has eight branches in seven cities of Pakistan which are as follows:

[Branch Name | Address |

1 Stock Exchange Branch Room No. 634, 6th Floor, Stock Exchange Building,
Stock Exchange Road, Karachi

2 Gulshan-e-Igbal Branch Suite No. 607-A, 6th Floor, Al Ameen Towers, Plot No E-2,
Block 10, Gulshan-e- Igbal, Main NIPA, Karachi

3 Hyderabad Branch Address: Shop No. 20, Ground Floor, Auto Bhan Towers,
Auto Bhan Road, Unit No. 3, Latifabad, Hyderabad
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2.1

2.2

23

4 Islamabad Branch Room No. 413, 4th Floor, ISE Towers, 55-B,
Jinnah Avenue , Islamabad

5 Faislabad Branch Office no G-04, Ground Floor, Mezan Executive Tower
Plot No 4, Liaquat Road, Faisalabad

6 Lahore Branch Plot No. 434-G/1,MA Johar Town, Lahore

7 Multan Branch Office No. 608-A, Sixth Floor, The United Mall,
Plot No. 74, Abdali Road, Multan

8 Peshawar Branch First Floor, State life Building No. 34, The Mall Road,
Peshawar Cantt, Peshawar

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan
comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of
and directives issued under the Act, have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain
investments and derivative financial instruments which are stated at fair value. Further, lease liability and
related Right-of-use Assets which are initially measured at present value of lease payments that were
unpaid at lease commencement date.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is also the functional and
presentation currency of the Company and rounded off to the nearest rupee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

24

25

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and as other comprehensive income at assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
are apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The estimates and judgments that have a significant effect on the financial statements are in respect of
the following:

- Valuation of investments (notes 3.4, 14 and 17);

- Residual values and useful lives of property and equipment (notes 3.2 and 11);
- Residual values and useful life of investment property (notes 3.15 and 12);

- Useful lives of intangible assets (notes 3.3 and 13);

- Recognition of current and deferred taxation (notes 3.6 and 16);

- Provision for impairment on financial assets (3.4.1); and

- Right of use assets and lease liability (3.14).
New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022:

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) effective for the annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 amends IAS 1 by mainly adding paragraphs which clarifies what
comprises the cost of fulfilling a contract. Cost of fulfilling a contract is relevant when determining whether
a contract is onerous. An entity is required to apply the amendments to contracts for which it has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments (the date of initial application). Restatement of comparative information is not required,
instead the amendments require an entity to recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other component of equity,
as appropriate, at the date of initial application.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

The following annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

IFRS 9 — The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity
(the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the
other’s behalf, when it applies the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to
derecognize a financial liability.

IFRS 16 — The amendment partially amends lllustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by excluding
the illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The objective of the
amendment is to resolve any potential confusion that might arise in lease incentives.

IAS 41 — The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities to exclude
taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16) effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 clarifies that sales proceeds and costs of items
produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management e.g. when testing etc., are
recognized in profit or loss in accordance with applicable Standards. The entity measures the cost of those
items applying the measurement requirements of IAS 2. The standard also removes the requirement of
deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An entity shall apply those amendments
retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first
applies the amendments. The entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity,
as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented.

Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) - Reference to the Conceptual
Framework, issued in May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 and 23 of and added paragraphs
21A, 21B, 21C and 23A to IFRS 3 . An entity shall apply those amendments to business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or
after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted if at the same time or earlier an entity also applies all
the amendments made by Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards,
issued in March 2018.

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) amendments apply
retrospectively for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. These amendments in the
standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is classified as current. The standard also
amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of the entity’s
right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) — the Board has
issued amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies and to help
companies provide useful accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to IAS 1 include:

- requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies;

- clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions are
themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and

- clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or
conditions are themselves material to a company’s financial statements.

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional examples on
the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted.

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) — The amendments introduce a new definition
for accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty.

The amendments also clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by
specifying that a company develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by an
accounting policy. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and will
apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies occurring on or
after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company applies the amendments.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12) —
The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. As a result, companies will need
to recognize a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising on initial
recognition of a lease and a decommissioning provision. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the
associated deferred tax asset and liabilities will need to be recognized from the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an adjustment to retained
earnings or other components of equity at that date. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted.

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28) — The amendment amends accounting treatment on loss of control of business or
assets. The amendments also introduce new accounting for less frequent transaction that involves neither
cost nor full step-up of certain retained interests in assets that are not businesses. The effective date for
these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the completion of a broader review.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

3.1

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a defined contribution plan. i.e. recognised provident fund scheme for all its
eligible employees in accordance with the trust deed and rules made thereunder. Equal monthly
contributions at the rate of 7.33% of basic salary are made to the fund by the Company and the
employees.

Property and equipment

Iltems of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Depreciation is calculated on straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation
on additions is charged from the month in which they are available for use and on deletions up to the
month of deletion.

Category of Operating Assets Useful life
Office equipment - computer related items 03 years
Office equipment - others 04 years
Office furniture 10 years
Leasehold improvements 10 years
Building 40 years
Motor vehicles 05 years

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits as associated with the item will flow to
the Company and its cost can be reliably measured. Cost incurred to replace an item of property and
equipment is capitalized and the asset so replaced is retired from use and its carrying amount is
derecognised. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate at each reporting
date. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.

Gains and losses on disposal of assets, if any, are taken to statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Intangible assets

Intangible assets having finite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line
method taking into account residual value, if any, at the rates specified in note 13 to these financial
statements. Amortisation is charged from the date the asset is available for use while in the case of assets
disposed of, it is charged till the date of disposal. The useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any. An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life, when, based on an analysis of all
the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to
generate net cash inflows for the Company. An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is not
amortised. However, the carrying amount is reviewed at each reporting date or whenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired, to assess whether it is in excess of its recoverable amount, and
where the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, it is written down to its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in statement of profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Financial instruments
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of bank balances, loans and advances to employees /
counter parties and due to counterparties, are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way
trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Bank balances and loans and advances to employees / counter parties are recognised when funds are
transferred to the banks / employees / counterparties. The Company recognises due to counterparties
when funds reach the Company.

All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded as 'at fair value through profit or loss' whereby
trasaction costs are not capitalised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

3.4.1 Financial assets

The financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income on the basis of both:

- The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets; and

- The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt Instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income are subsequently measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income. Interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. On de-
recognition, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified from other comprehensive income to profit or loss. Debt instruments are subject to impairment
under Expected Credit Loss model. The ECLs for debt instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income do not reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets in the statement of
financial position, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise
if the assets were measured at amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as an
accumulated impairment amount, with a corresponding charge to statement of profit or loss. The
accumulated loss recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to the statement of profit or loss
upon de-recognition of the assets.

Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Upon initial recognition, the Company elects to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of Equity
under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The Company's policy is to
designate equity investments as fair value through other comprehensive income when those investments
are held for purposes other than to generate investment returns. Such classification is determined on an
instrument by instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit. Dividends are recognised in
profit or loss as other operating income when the right of payment has been established, except when the
Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case,
such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to an impairment assessment.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

3.4.2

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if:

(a) Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding;

(b) Itis not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows, or
to both collect contractual cash flows and sell; and

or

(c) Atinitial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at FVPL when doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

This category includes all financial liabilities, other than those measured at fair value through profit or loss,
if any.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised where the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the
Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-through
arrangement and the Company has:
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(a) Transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset; or

(o)  Neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset (or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement), and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognises an as other
comprehensive income liability. The transferred asset and the as other comprehensive income liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. The Company
derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are not subject to impairment under IFRS 9.

The ECL allowance on financial assets (other than trade debts, receivable against margin finance, loans
and advances and other receivables) is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the
asset (the lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit
risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss
(12mECL). The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. In order to
determine appropriate staging for financial assets (other than trade debts, receivable against margin
financing, loans and advances and other receivables) under IFRS 9, the Company applies the Low Credit
Risk (LCR) expedient. The Company considers only those balances as LCR that have investment grade
rating from an External Rating Agency (BBB- or equivalent or higher) at the reporting date. The LCR
balances are considered as stage 1. The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted and
therefore, Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations in all cases when there is an objective evidence
of impairment of financial assets and Company believes that the counter party will not be able to make its
contractual payments. All other balances are considered as stage 2 as at reporting date. For
measurement of ECL, PD, EAD and LGD are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood of survival
(i.e. the exposure has not prepaid or defaulted in earlier year) on annual basis. This effectively calculates
an ECL for each future year, which is then discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The
discount rate used in ECL computation is the original effective interest rate or an approximation thereof.
Forward looking economic information is also included in determining the 12 month and lifetime ECL and
economic variables (the “base economic scenario”) are obtained from external sources. For ECL
estimation, the PDs as other comprehensive income with each rating grade are determined based on
realized default rates as published by the rating agency.
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The Company holds trade debts, receivable against margin finance and other receivables which have
maturities of less than 12 months at amortised cost and, as such, has chosen to apply an approach similar
to the simplified approach for expected credit losses (ECL) under IFRS 9 to all its trade debts, receivable
against margin finance, loans and advances and other receivables. Therefore, the Company does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead, recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Company’s approach to ECLs reflects a probability-weighted outcome, the time value
of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. The
Company uses the provision matrix as a practical expedient to measuring ECLs on trade receivables,
based on days past due for groupings of receivables with similar loss patterns. Receivables are grouped
based on their nature. The provision matrix is based on historical observed loss rates over the expected
life of the receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.5 Revenue recognition

Brokerage, consultancy, advisory fee, underwriting, book running fee, commission on foreign exchange
dealings and debt securities etc. are recognised as and when such services are provided.

Income from reverse repurchase transactions, debt securities and bank deposits is recognised at effective
yield on time proportionate basis.

Interest income on financial assets (including margin financing) is recognised on time proportionate basis
taking into account effective / agreed rate of the instrument.

Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Gains / losses arising on sale of investments are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Unrealised capital gains / losses arising from mark to market of investments classified as 'financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss' are included in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Unrealised gains / losses arising from mark to market of investments classified as 'fair value through other
comprehensive income' are taken directly to statement of comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise.
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3.6

3.7

Gains / losses arising on revaluation of derivatives to fair value are taken to statement of profit or loss
under other income / other expense in the period in which they arise.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in equity or other comprehensive income
respectively.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxability of certain income streams of the Company under
minimum / final tax regime at the applicable tax rates and remaining income streams chargeable at
current rate of taxation under the normal tax regime after taking into account tax credits and tax rebates
available, if any.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities used for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the rates that are expected to be applied to the
temporary differences when they arise, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to the statement of profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes include cash in hand, current and deposit accounts
held with banks.
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3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets other than deferred tax asset and intangible
assets with indefinite useful life is reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
objective evidence that an asset or group of assets may be impaired. If any such evidence exists, the
asset or group of assets’ recoverable amount is estimated. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in
statement of profit or loss immediately. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into
rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction date. Exchange gains or losses are taken to
statement of profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred on long term finances directly attributable for the construction / acquisition of
qualifying assets are capitalized up to the date the respective assets are available for intended use. All
other mark-up, interest and other related charges are taken to the statement of profit or loss directly.

Provisions
A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be

required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. However,
provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit after tax for the period by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Dividend distributions and appropriations

Dividend distributions and appropriations are recorded in the period in which the distributions and
appropriations are approved.
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3.14 Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless
the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term,
the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or
a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of property and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption
to leases that are considered of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.
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The Company has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets for additional terms of one to
five years. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
option to renew. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise
the renewal. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise (or
not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g., a change in business st